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Board Members Lincoln Parish School Board Ruston, Louisiana 
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

Ernest L. Allen, CPA A Professional Account ng Corp) Tim Green, CPA Margie Wiltiamsen, CPA 

We have audited the accompanying GENERAL-PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS of Lincoln Parish School Board, Ruston, Louisiana, as of and for the year ended June 30, 1999, as listed in the table of contents. These general-purpose financial statements are the responsibility of the School Board's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these general-purpose financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of tbe United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on atest basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 
In our opinion, the general-purpose financial statements referred to above present faMy, in all material respects the financial position of the School Board, as of June 30, 1999, and the results of its operations, and the cash flows of its proprietary fund types for the year tben ended, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles The year 2000 iRformation on page 42 is not a required part of the basic financial statements but is supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Technical Bulletin (TB) 99-1, Disclosures About Year 2000 Issues - an amendment of Technical Bulletin 98-1. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and do not express an opinion on it. In addition, we do not provide assurance that the School Board is or will become year 2000 compliant, that the School Board's year 2000 remediation efforts will be successful in whole or in part, or that parties with which the School Board does business are or will become year 2000 compliant. In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report, under separate cover, dated October 14, 1999, on our consideration of the School Board's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. 

Member; Amelican Institute of Cedifled Public Accountants, Society of Louisiana Certified Public Accountants ,~nd Amelican Institute of Certified Public Accountants Division for CPA Finns Equal Opportunity Employer 



Board Members Lincoln Parish School Board Ruston, Louisiana Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general-purpose financial statements of the School Board, taken as a whole. The accompanying SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the general-purpose financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general-purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the general-purpose financial statements taken as a whole. 

Monroe, Louisiana October 14, 1999 
ALLEN, GREEN & COMPANY, LLP 



LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Ruston, Louisiana ALL FUND TYPES AND ACCOUNT GROUPS Combined Balance Sheet June 30, i999 

ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS Assets Cash and cash equivalents Investments Receivables Due from other funds Deposits Inventory Prepaid items Land, buildings and equipment Other debits Amount available in debt service fund Amount to be provided for payment of debt 

RNMENTAL FUNDS*** SPECIAL DEBT GENERAt. REVENUE SERVICE FUND FUNDS FUNDS 
1,706,717 $ 2,870,005 1,075,397 464,035 0 0 6,775 0 

948,972 $ 285,406 542,781 0 2,500 57,060 0 0 

PROPRIETARY TYPE- INTERNAL SERVICE 
487,403 $ 1,434,000 6,364 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

422,295 0 62,615 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
TOTAL ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS $_._ 6,122~92,._~9 $ ,, , ll8361719 $ 1,927,767 $ 484t910 LIABILITIES, EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS Liabilities: Accounts, salaries and other payables Due to other funds Deposits due others Deferred revenues Notes payable Bonds payable Capital leases payable Compensated absences payable Total Liabilities Equity and other credits investments in general fixed assets Retained earnings (deficit) Fund Balances: Reserved for inventory Reserved for prepaid items Reserved for instruction, repairs & construction Reserved for salary improvements Reserved for debt service Unreserved and undesignated fund balance 
Total equity and other credits 

2,337,647 $ O O 0 0 0 0 0 

212,521 $ 464,035 0 91,948 0 0 0 

05 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

360,146 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 L 2,337~_647 ~; 7_68,504 ~. o $ 36o,146 
o$ o o 6,775 538,625 189,846 o 3.050.036 

o$ o 33,305 o o o o 1.o34.91o 

o$ o o o o o 1,927,767 o 

o 124,764 o o o o o o 
.$~_. 3,785~282 .~__!~068,215 ~ $ 124,764 TOTAL LIABILITIES, EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS L~6 122,~929 ~ 1 T836,719 ~ 1,927,,763' $ 484,910 

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF ]HIS STATEMEN'f 



FIDUCIARY- AGENCY FUND 
ACCOUNT GROUPS GENERAL FIXED ASSETS 

432,060 $ 0 0 O 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 0 0 39.242,491 

GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT 

Statement A 
TOTAL (MEMORANDUM ONLY). 
05 0 0 O 0 0 O 0 0 1,927,767 0 ___ 0 10,807,901 

3,997,447 4,589,411 1,687,157 464,035 2,500 57,060 6,775 39,242,491 1,927,767 lO.807.901 432,060 $ 39,242,491 ~ 12,735,668 $62,7_82,544 
05 0 432,060 0 0 0 0 

05 0 O 0 0 0 0 

05 0 0 0 106,185 10,348,000 323.587 

2,910,314 464,035 432,060 91,948 106,185 10,348,000 323.587 0 0 1,957,896 ____ 1,9~i7,896 4320~0.60~ 0 $ 12,735,668 & 16634,025 05 0 
0 0 0 0 0 0 

39,242,491 $ 0 05 0 
0 0 0 0 0 0 

39,242,491 124.764 
33,305 6,775 538,625 189,846 1,927,767 4.084.946 0 ~9~242,491 $ O .$_ 46,1_48,519 



REVENUES Local sources: Taxes: Ad valorem Sales and use Interest earnings Food service Other State sources: Equalization Other Federal sources Total Revenues 

LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Ruston. Louisiana ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 

EXPENDITURES Current: Instruction: Regular programs Special programs Other instructional programs Support services: Student services Instructional staff support General administration School administration Business services Plant services Student transportation services Centra~ services Food services Community service program Facilities acquisition and construction Debt service: Principal retirement Interest and bank charges Total Expenditures 

GENERAL FUND 
2,865,098 $ 6,751,986 428,692 0 268.502 17,787,556 1,701,232 41.714 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 

1,003,332 $ 6 55,572 387,043 33,205 370,459 96,124 3,485,116 

Statement B 
TOTAL (MEMORANDUM ONLY) 

1,891,254 $ 0 86,805 0 60 
5,779,684 6,751,986 571,069 387,043 301,767 

0 18,158,015 O 1,797,356 0 3,626,830 $ 29~8647~80_$ 5,430,851 .$~ 1,978,119 $ 37,273,750 
$ 15,254,284 $ 3,096,065 2,233,650 1,222,237 1,441,049 589,757 1,963,433 335,876 1,429,183 1,777,384 49,295 274,985 15,599 438.831 

88,559 $ 1,339,066 89.428 0 305,318 62,540 0 0 1,051,577 183,989 0 2,303,168 23,400 19.670 

0 $ 15,342,843 0 4,435,131 0 2.323.078 0 0 56,578 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

1,222,237 1,746,367 708,875 1,963,433 335,876 2,480,760 1,961,373 49,295 2,578,153 38,999 458.501 63,533 8,743 1,444,507 1,516,783 205,556 356=666 670398 694520 
$ 30~205~.71_7__ $ 5,47902=~_4 L~171,483 ~ 37,8_56,224 EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES $ ~0~_93_-0_ L (48 17,17~ $ (_193 36,36~ ~ (5~ 

(CONTINUED 



LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Ruston. Louisiana ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) Operating transfers in Operating transfers out Sale of assets Insurance proceeds 

GENERAL FUND 
4,974 $ (100,001) 900 0 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 

100,000 $ (62,679) 903 

Statement B 
TOTAL (MEMORANDUM ONLY) 

57,706 $ 0 0 3,253 0 
162,680 (162,680) 1,803 3.253 Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ (94,127_)_ $ 41,477 ~_~ 57,708 EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES $ (435,064) $ (6,696) $ (135,658) $ (577,418) FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 4,220,346 1.074.911 -- 2,063,425_ 7,3581682 FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR $ 3~_ $ 1,068,21.~5 .$ 1,927,767 

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT 6 

(CONCLUDED) 



REVENUES Local sources: Taxes: Ad valorem Sales and use Interest earnings Other State sources: Equalization Other Federal sources 
Total Revenues 

LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Ruston. Louisiana GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - GENERAL FUND Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances- Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual For the Year Ended June 30. t999 Statement C 

EXPENDITURES Current: Instruction: Regular programs Special programs Other instructional programs Support services: Student services Instructional staff support General administration School administration Business services Plant services Student transportation services Central services Food services Community service program Facilities acquisition and construction Debt service: Principal retirement Interest and bank charges Total Expenditures 

BUDGET VARIANCE FAVORABLE ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) 
2,848,828 $ 6,715,200 394,300 188.139 17,789,475 1,715,994 104.782 

2,885,098 $ 6,751,986 428,692 268.502 17,787,556 1,701,232 

36,270 36,786 34,392 80.363 (1,919) (14,762) 41 714 (63,068) 
29,756,718 $ 29,864,780 $ 108,062 
15,141,596 $ 15,254,284 $ 3,145,405 3,096,065 2,213,400 2,233,650 1,298,411 1,487,021 573,156 1,987,049 338,472 1,407,470 1,779,572 50,810 285,070 15,137 438,984 

1,222,237 1,441,049 589,757 1,963,433 335,876 1,429,183 1,777,384 49,295 274,985 15,599 438,831 59,560 63,533 _ 24,650 20,556 

(112,688) 49,340 (20,250) 76,174 45,972 (16,601) 23,616 2,596 (21,713) 2,188 1,515 10,085 (462) 153 
(3,973) 4.094 

30,245,763 $ 30,205,717 $ 40,046 EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES (489,04~.$~_ (340,937) $ 148,108 CONTINUED 



LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Ruston, Louisiana GOVERNMENTAL. FUNDS - GENERAL FUND Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances- Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 Statement C 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) Operating transfers in Operating transfers out Sale of assets 
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) EXCESS(Deficiency) OF REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES 
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 

BUDGET ACTUAL 
0$ (115,981) 0 

VARIANCE FAVORABLE (UNFAVORABLE) 
4,974 $ (100,001) 9OO 4,974 15,980 900 (115,98~ ~; (94,127) $ 21,854 

$ (606,026) $ (435,064) $ 
3,414,154 4,220,346 

169,962 
806.192 
(CONTINUED) 



REVENUES Local sources: Taxes: Ad valorem Interest earnings Food service Other State sources: Equalization Other Federal sources Total Revenues 

LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Ruston, Louisiana GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS Combined Statement of Revenues, ["xpenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances- Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 Statement C 

EXPENDITURES Current: Instruction: Regular programs Special programs Other instructional programs Support services: Instructional staff support General administration Plant services Student transportation services Food services Community service program Facilities acquisition and construction Debt service: Principal retirement Interest and bank charges Total Expenditures 

BUDGET VARIANCE FAVORABLE ACTUAL ~UNFAVORABLE) 
996,700 $ 42,880 386,600 29.100 

1,003,332 $ 55,572 387,043 33,205 
6,632 12,692 443 4.105 370,458 370,459 1 94,000 96,124 2,124 3,596,502_ 3,485,116 (111,386) 5,516,240 $ 5,430,851 L (85,389) 

91,741 $ 1,586,706 92.565 
342,949 66,530 1,068,288 179,320 2,253,100 0 19.325 

88,559 $ 1,339,066 89.428 305,318 62,540 1,051,577 183,989 2,303,168 23,400 19.670 

3,182 247,640 3.137 37,631 3,990 16,711 (4,669) (50,068) (23,400) (345) O 8,743 (8,743) 0 3,566 __ ( _3~56~)_ 5,700,524 L 5,479,024 L 221,500 EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES ~ (184,2~~__ (48,1~ ~$~_ 136,111 
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) Operating transfers in Operating transfers out Sale of assets Insurance proceeds Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 9 

$ 100,000 $ 100,000 $ 0 9 (62,679) (62,679) 900 903 3 .__ 3,260 3 253 (7) 
$ 104,160 $ 41,477 L (62,683) CONTINUED 



LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Ruston. Louisiana GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances- Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 Statement C 

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 
FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR 

BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE FAVORABLE {UNFAVORABLE EI 
(80,124) $ (6,696) $ 1.041.606 1~O074,911 73,428 33,305 

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT l0 

CONCLUDED 



OPERATING REVENUE Premiums OPERATING EXPENSES Administralion Insurance expense Claims 

LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Ruston, Louisiana PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE - INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Retained Earnings (Deficit) For The Year Ended June 30. 1999 

Total operating expenses Operating income (loss) NONOPERATING REVENUES Earnings on investments Net income (loss) 
RETAINED EARNINGS (Deficit) AT BEGINNING OF YEAR RETAINED EARNINGS (Deficit) AT END OF YEAR 

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT 

Statement D 

$ 227,095 345,735 __~991,739 $ !564,569 $ 67.602 
4,224 $ 71,630 
52,934 124~764 



LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Ruston, Louisiana PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE - INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS Combined Statement of Cash Flows For theYear Ended June 30, 1999 
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES Operating income (loss) Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided (used) for operating activities Increase (decrease) in payable (Increase) decrease in receivable Net cash provided (used) for operating activities CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES Earnings on investments 
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities Net (increase) decrease in cash and cash equivalents CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF' YEAR 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT 

Statement E 

67.602 
120,672 0 
~74 
4 228 
4 228 
192.502 

__~93 



Lincoln Parish School Board Rnston, Louisiana Notes to tile General-Purpose Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1999 INDEX NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ... A. REPORTING ENTITY B. FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS Governmental Funds Proprietary Funds Fiduciary Funds Account Groups C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING . Governmental Funds Proprietary Funds Fiduciary Funds D. BUDGETS General Budget Policies Encumbrances Budget Basis of Accounting E. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS F. INVESTMENTS G. SHORT-TERM INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES .. H. INVENTORY AND PREPAID ITEMS I. FIXED ASSETS J. DEFERRED REVENUES K. COMPENSATED ABSENCES L. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS M. FUND EQUITY N. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS O. SALES TAXES P. USE OF ESTIMATES Q. MEMORANDUM ONLY - TOTAL COLUMNS NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY . A. Deficit Retained Earnings B. Excess of Expenditures over Appropriations in Individual Funds NOTE 3 - LEVIED TAXES NOTE 4 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS NOTE 5 - RECEIVABLES NOTE 6 - FIXED ASSETS NOTE 7 - RETIREMENT SYSTEMS NOTE 8 - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS NOTE 9 - ACCOUNTS, SALARIES AND OTHER PAYABLES NOTE 10 - COMPENSATED ABSENCES NOTE 1 l - AGENCY FUND DEPOSITS DUE OTHERS NOTE 12 - LEASES NOTE 13 - GENERAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS NOTE 14 - INTERJ"UND TRANSACTIONS NOTE 15 - RESERVED AND DESIGNATED FUND BALANCES 
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Lincoln Parish School Board Ruston, Louisiana 
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Lincoln Parish School Board Ruston, Louisiana Notes to the General-Purpose Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended Jane 30, 1999 NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
The accompanying financial statements of the School Board have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. A. REPORTING ENTITY The Lincoln Parish School Board was created by Louisiana Revised Statute (LSA-R,S.) 17:51 to provide public education for the children within Lincoln Parish. The School Board is authorized by LSA-R.S. 17:81 to establish policies and regulations for its own government consisten! with the laws of the state of Louisiana and the regulations of the Louisiana Board of Elementary and Secondary Education. The School Board is comprised of twelve members who are elected from twelve districts for terms of four years. The School Board operates fourteen schools and is the fiscal agent for four university laboratory schools within the parish with a total enrollment of approximately 6,865 pupils. In conjunction with the regular educational programs, some of these schools offer special education and/or adult education programs. In addition, the School Board provides transportation and school food services for the students. GASB Statement 14 establishes criteria for determining the governmental reporting entity and component units that should be included within the reporting entity. Under provisions of this Statement, the School Board is considered a primary government, since it is a special purpose government that has a separately elected governing body, is legally separate, and is fiscally independent of other state or local governments. As used in GASB Statement 14, fiscally independent means that the School Board may, without the approval or consent of another governmental entity, determine or modify its own budget, levy its own taxes or set rates or charges, and issue bonded debt. The School Board also has no component units, defined by GASB Statement 14 as other legally separate organizations for which the elected School Board members are financially accountable. There are no other primary governments with which the School Board has a significant relationship. B. FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS The accounts of the School Board are organized and operated on the basis of funds and account groups. A fund is an independent fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. Fund accounting segregates funds according to their intended purpose and is used to aid management in demonstrating compliance with finance-related legal and contractual provisions. The minimum number of funds arc maintained consistent with legal and managerial requirements. Account groups are a reporting device to account for certain assets and liabilities of the governmental funds not recorded directly in those funds. The funds of the School Board are classified into three categories: governmental, proprietary and fiduciary. In turn, each category is divided into separate fund types. The fhnd and account group classifications and a description of each existing fund type follow: 

5 



Lincoln Parish School Board Ruston, Louisiana 
Notes to the General-Purpose Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1999 NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) B. FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS (Continued) 

Governmental Funds Governmental funds arc used to account for the School Board's general government activities, inclnding the collection and disbursement of specific or legally restricted monies, the acquisition or construction of general fixed assets, and the servicing of general long-term debt. Governmental funds include: General fund -- the primary operating fund of the School Board. It accounts for all financial resources of the School Board, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 
Special revenue funds -- accounts for revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes (not including expendable trusts or major capital projects). Debt service funds -- accounts for the servicing of general long-term debt not being financed by proprietary or nonexpendable trust funds. 
Proprietary Funds Proprietary funds account for activities similar to those found in the private sector, where the determination of net income is necessary or useful to sound financial administration. Proprietary funds differ from governmental funds in that their focus is on income measurement, which, together with the maintenance of equity, is an important financial indicator. Proprietary fund(s) include the following: Internal service funds -- accounts for operations that provide services other departments or agencies of the government, or to other governments, on a cost-reimbursement basis. 
Workers' compensation fund --This fund, which began in fiscal year 1991, is used to account for the payment of workers' compensation benefits. Fund revenues are derived from government allocations. These revenues are planned to match: (1) expenses of insurance premiums in excess of risk retention amounts; (2) estimated claim losses resulting from risk retention programs which include estimated liabilities for claims incurred but not yet reported at year end, and (3) operating expenses. Group health insurance fond -- Monies in this fund are received from three sources: employee deductions from payroll, 1967 sales tax fund and the state of Louisiana. Monies are used to pay employee health insurance claims, the administrative cost to the insurance administrator for administration of the plan and processing medical claims, cost of excess and specific insurance to protect the fund from exposure to large claims, hospital pre-certifieation, and life insurance with an insurance carrier. 

16 



Lincoln Parish School Board Ruston, Louisiana 
Notes to the General-Purpose Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1999 NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) B. FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS (Continued) 

Fiduciary Funds Fiduciary funds account for assets held by the government in a trustee capacity or as an agent on behalf of outside parties, including other governments, or on behalf of other funds within the School Board. Trust fimds account for assets held by the government under the terms of a formal trust agreement. Agency funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not present results of operations or have a measurement focus. Agency funds are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. This fund is used to account for assets that the government holds for others in an agency capacity. The agency fund is as follows: School activity agency fund -- accounts for assets held by the School Board as an agent for the individual schools and school organizations. Account Groups The generalfixed assets account group is used to account for fixed assets not accounted for in proprietary or trust funds. The general long-term debt account group is used to account for general long-term debt and certain other liabilities that are not specific liabilities of proprietary or trust funds. C. M EASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 
Governmental Funds Tile accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fired is determined by its measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities are generally included on the balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds present increases and decreases in net current assets. The governmental funds use the following practices in recording revenues and expenditures. Governmental fund types use the flow of current financial resources measnreme~lt focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e., when they are "measurable and available"). "Measurable" means tile amount of the transaction can be determined and "available" means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. The government considers all revenues available if they are collected within 60 days after year-end. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for interest and principal payments on general long-term debt which is recognized when due, and certain compensated absences and claims and judgments which are recognized when the obligations are expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources. 



Lincoln Parish School Board Ruston, Louisiana Notes in the General-Ptlrpose Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1999 NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Conlinncd) C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (Continued) Governmental Funds (Continued) With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities are generally included on the balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds present increases and decreases in net current assets. The governmental funds use the following practices in recording revenues and expenditures: 
Revenues Ad va]orenl taxes and sales taxes are susceptible to accrua 

Other receipts become measurable and available when cash is received by the School Board and are recognized as revenue at that time. Expenditures 
Salaries are recorded as paid. Salaries for nine-month employees are paid over twelve months Other Finanein~ Sources (Uses Transfers between funds that are not expected to be repaid (or any other types, such as capital lease transactions, sale of fixed assets, debt extinguishments, long-term debt proceeds, et cetera) are accounted for as other financing sources (uses). These Other finaucing sources (uses) are recognized at the time the underlying events occur. Proprietary Funds 

Proprietary funds are accounted for on the flow of economic resources measurement focus and use the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time the liabilities are incurred. With this measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of these funds are included on the balance sheet. The school board has elected pursuant to GASB Statement No. 20, to apply all GASB pronouncements and only FASB pronouncements issued before November 30, 1989. 



Lincoln Parish School Board Ruston, Louisiana Notes to the General-Purpose Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1999 NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (Continued) Fiduciary Funds Tile agency fund is custodial in nature and does not present results of operations or have a measurement focus. Agency funds are accounted for using tile modified accrual basis of accounting. This fund is used to account for assets that the School Board holds for others in an agency capacity. D. BUDGETS 
General Budget Policies The School Board follows these procedures ill establishing the budgetary data reflected in the combined financial statements: Stale Statute requires budgets be adopted for the general fund and all special revenue funds 

Approprialions (unexpended budget balances) lapse at year end Formal budget integration (within the accounting records) is employed as a management control device. Budget amounts included in the accompanying financial statements include the original adopted budget and all subsequent amendments. These revisions were considered insignifieant by the School Board. All budget revisions are approved by the School Board. 
Encumbrances Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is not employed. However, outstanding purchase orders are taken into consideration before expenditures are incurred in order to assure that applicable appropriations are not exceeded. In addition, the monthly budget reports are reviewed to ensure compliance with the budget, and where necessary, revisions to the budget are made. 



Lincoln Parish School Board Ruston, Louisiana Notes to the General-Purpose Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1999 NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) D. BUDGETS (Continued) Budget Basis of Accounting All governmental funds' budgets are prepared on the modified accrual basis of aeeounting, a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted or as amended by the Board. Legally, the Board must adopt a balanced budget; that is, total budgeted revenues and other financing sources including fund balance must equal or exceed total budgeted expenditures and other financing uses. State statutes require the Board to amend its budgets when revenues plus projected revenues within a fund are expected to be less than budgeted revenues by five percent or more and/or expenditures within a fund are expected to exceed budgeted expenditures by five percent or more. The School Board approves budgets at the function level for the general fund and at the fund level for special revenue funds. Management can transfer amounts between line items within a function. E. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Cash includes amounts in demand deposits and interest-bearing demand deposits. Cash equivalents include amounts in investments with original maturities of ninety days or less. Under state law, the School Board may deposit funds in demand deposits, interest-bearing demand deposits, money market accounts, or time deposits with state banks organized under Louisiana law and national banks having their principal offices in Louisiana. F. INVESTMENTS 
Investments are limited by LSA-R.S. 33:2955 and the School Board's investment policy. If the original maturities of investments exceed 90 days, they are classified as investments; however, if the original maturities are 90 days or less, they are classified as cash equivalents. Investments in certificates of deposits are stated at cost. Investments in U. S. Treasury securities arc stated at anaortized cost. Investments in the Louisiana Asset Management Pool (LAMP) are valued at fair value. The investments are reflected at fair value except for the following which are permitted per GASB Statement No. 31: Investments in nonparticipating interest-earning contracts, such as nonnegotiable certificates of deposit with redemption terms that do not consider market rates, are reported using a cost-based measure. The School Board reported at amortized cost money market investments andparticipating interest-earning investment contracts that have a remaining maturity at time of purchase of one year or less. 



Lincohl Parish School Board Ruston, Louisiana Notes to the General-Purpose Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1999 NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) F. INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
Interest-earning investment contracts include time deposits with financial institutions (such as certificates of deposit), repurchase agreements, and guaranteed investment contracts. Money market investments are short-term, highly liquid debt instruments that inclnde U. S. Treasury obligations. The School Board participates in the Louisiana Asset Management Pool, Inc. (LAMP) which is an external investment pool that is not SEC-registered. Because the LAMP is an arrangement sponsored by a type of governmental entity, it is exempt by statute from regulation by the SEC. The iuvestment objective of the LAMP is the preservation of capital and the maintenance of liquidity and, to the extent consistent with such objective, current yield. The LAMP was established as a cooperative endeavor to enable public entities of the state of Louisiana to aggregate funds for investment. This pooling is intended to improve administrative efficiency and increase investment yield. The Board of Directors of LAMP provides certain management and administrative services to LAMP and, through a competitive bidding process, selects a custodial bank and an investment advisor. The custodial bank holds the assets of LAMP and the investnrent decisions are made by the investment advisor. Both the custodial bank and the investment advisor are subject to the review and oversight of LAMP. An annual audit of LAMP is conducted by an independent certified public accountant. The Legislative Auditor of the state of Louisiana has full access to the records of the LAMP. The LAMP may invest in U. S. Government Securities and is designed to comply with restriction on investments by municipalities, parishes, and other types of political subdivisions imposed under Louisiana Revised Statute 33:2955. The LAMP seeks to maintain a stable net asset value of $1.00 per unit, but there can be no assurance that the LAMP will be able to achieve this objective. The LAMP's portfolio securities are valued at fair value. The LAMP operates in a manner consistent with the SEC's Rule 2a7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, which governs money market funds (although the LAMP is not a money market fund and has uo obligation to conform to this role.) In addition, the LAMP will generally comply with other aspects &that rule, including the requirements that all portfolio securities acquired by the LAMP must have, at the time of purchase, a maximum remaining maturity of 397 days and meet certain additional quality standards and that the LAMP maintain a dollar-weighted average portfolio maturity of not more than 90 days. 
The fair value of the position in the pool is the same as the value of the pool shares. 



Lincoln Parish School Board Rnston, Louisiana Notes to the General-Purpose Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1999 NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) G. SHORT-TERM INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES 
During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for services rendered. These receivables and payables are classified as due from other funds or due to other funds on the balance sheet. Short-term interfund loans are classified as interfund receivables/payables. II. INVENTORY AND PREPAID ITEMS Inventory of the school food service special revenue fund consists of food purchased by the School Board and commodities granted by the United States Department of Agriculture through the Louisiana Department of Agriculture and Forestry. Inventory of the school food service fund is accounted for on the consumption method. Inventory items are valued at cost (first-in, first-out) and commodities are assigned values based on information provided by the United States Department of Agriculture. Revenues related to commodities which are not consumed as of the date of the balance sheet are reflected as deferred revenues since title does not pass to the School Board until the commodities are consumed. Inventories are offset by a fund balance reserve which indicates that these do not constitute "available spendable resources," even though they are a component of total assets. 
Acquisition of materials and supplies other than the food purchases are accounted for on the purchase method, that is, the expenditures are charged when the items are purchased. The value of these materials and supplies, except for the food purchased in the school food service special revenue fund, are not considered significant at June 30, 1999, and their value is not shown in the accompanying balance sheet. Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items. 
I. FIXED ASSETS Fixed assets used in governmental fund types of the School Board are recorded in the general fixed assets account group at cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated fixed assets are recorded at tbeir estimated fair value at the date of donation. Assets in the general fixed assets account group are not depreciated. Interest during construction is not capitalized on general fixed assets. Fixed assets valued at estimated historical cost where no historical records exist was $2,217,553 at year-cud Public domain (infrastructure) general fixed assets (e.g. roads, bridges, sidewalks and other assets that are immovable and of value only to the government) are capitalized. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets' lives are not included in tbe general fixed assets account group or capitalized in tbe proprietary funds. 



Lincoln Parish School Board Ruston, Louisiana 
Notes to the General-Purpose Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1999 NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) J. DEFERRED REVENUES The School Board reports deferred revenues on its combined balance sheet. Deferred revenues arise when resources are received by the School Board before it has a legal claim to them, as when grant monies are received prior to the incurrence of qualifying expenditures. In subsequent periods, when the School Board }>as a legal claim to the resources, the liability for deferred revenue is removed from the combined balance sheet and the revenue is recognized. K. COMPENSATED ABSENCES 

All School Board employees earn from ten to eighteen days of sick leave each year, depending upou the number of months employed. Sick leave can be accumulated without limitation. Upon retirement or death, unused accumulated sick leave of up to twenty-five days is paid to the employee or to the employee's estate at tile employee's current rate of pay, Under the Louisiana Teachers' Retirement System and the Louisiana School Employees' Retirement System, all unpaid sick leave is used in the retirement benefit computation as earned service. Leave benefits are based on accrued leave benefits of employees with ten years service to a maximum of twenty-five days at their current annual salary. The School Board's recognition and measurement criteria for compensated absences follows GASB Statement No. 16 provides that vacation leave and other compensated absences with similar characteristics should be accrued as liability as the benefits are earned by the employees if both of the following conditions are met: A. The employees' right to receive compensation are attributable to services already rendered B. It is probable that the employer will compensate the employees for the benefits through paid time off or some other means, such as cash payments at termination or retirement. GASB Statement No. 16 provides that a liability for sick leave should be accrued using one of tile following termination approaches: A. An accrual for earned sick leave should be made only to the extent it is probable that the benefits will result in termination payments, rather than be taken as absences due to illness or other contingencies, such as medical appointments and funerals. 



Lincoln Parish School Board Ruston, Louisiana Notes to the General-Purpose Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1999 NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) K. COMPENSATED ABSENCES (Continued) B. Alternatively, a governmental entity should estimate its accrued sick leave liability based on the sick leave accumulated at the balance sheet date by those employees who currently are eligible to receive ternaination payments as well as other employees who are expected to become eligible in the future to receive such payments. The School Board uses this approach in accruing sick leave. Only the current portion of the liability for compensated absences is reported in the fund. The current portion is the amount left unpaid at the end of the reporting period that normally would be liquidated with expendable available financial resources. The remainder of the liability is reported in the general long-term debt account group. L. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS The School Board reports long-term debt of governmental funds at face value in the general long-term debt account group. Certain other goverumental fund obligations not expected to be financed with current available financial resources are also reported in the general long-term debt account group. For governmental fund types, bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are recognized during the current period. Bond proceeds are reported as an other financing source net of the applicable premium or discmmt. Issuance costs, even if withheld from the actual net proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. The School Board reports long-term debt of governmental funds at face value in the general long-term debt account group. Certain other governmental fund obligations not expected to be financed with current available financial resources are also reported in the general long-term debt account group. Long-term debt and other obligations financed by proprietary funds are reported as liabilities in the appropriate funds. For governmental fund types, bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are recognized during the current period. Bond proceeds are reported as an other financing source net of the applicable premium or discount. Issuance costs, even if withheld from the actual net proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. For proprietary fund types, bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Issuance costs are reported as deferred charges. 



Lincoln Parish School Board Ruston, Louisiana Notes to the General-Purpose Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1999 NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) M. FUND EQUITY Reservations of fund balance represent amounts that are not appropriable or are legally segregated for a specific purpose. Reservations of retained earnings are limited to outside third-party restrictions. Designations of fund balance represent tentative management plans that are subject to change. The proprietary fund's contributed capital represents equity acquired through capital grants and capital contributions from developers, customers or other funds. N. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures initially made from it that are properly applicable to another fund are recorded as expenditures in the reimbursing fund and as reductions of expcnditures in the fund that is reimbursed. All other interfund transactions are reported as transfers. Nonrecurring or non-routine permanent transfers of equity are reported as residual equity transfers. All other interfund transfers arc reported as operating transfers. 
O. SALES TAXES The School Board receives a one and one half cent sales and use tax. The tax is collected by the Lincoln Parish Sales and Use Tax Commission and is remitted to the School Board the same month the tax is collected. The sales and use tax is recorded as revenue in the general fund. A one-half cent sales and use tax, approved September 12, 1967, is dedicated to supplement other revenues available for the payment of salaries of teachers in the public elementary and secondary schools and for the expenditures of operating said schools, such operating expenditures to include payment of other personnel employed by the School Board in addition to teachers. Another one-half cent sales and use tax, approved May 19, 1979, and rededicated March 8, 1988, was dedicated as follows: Two-thirds is for paying salaries of certified and non-certified employees of the School Board above their base pay and paying retirement and other benefits for said employees. One-third is for constructing, acquiring, erecting, improving and/or repairing schools and school-related facilities and for paying the cost of utilities therefor, and for improving instruction, providing inslructional materials and student services and cun'iculum enrichment, including salaries for over-staffed instructional positions, in and for the public schools. The third one-half cent sales and use tax, approved January 16, 1993, is dedicated for the purpose ofpaying institutional and support staff salaries and benefits, including but not limited to salaries and benefits for elementary school librarians, elementary school vocal music instructors, and elementary coordinators. 



Lincoln Parish School Board Ruston, Louisiana Notes to the General-Purpose Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1999 NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) P. USE OF ESTIMATES The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statement and the reported amounts of revenues, expenditures and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Q. MEMORANDUM ONLY - TOTAL COLUMNS Total columns on the general-purpose financial statements are captioned as "Memorandum Only" because they do not represent consolidated financial information and are presented only to facilitate financial analysis. The columns do not present information that reflects financial position, results of operations or cash flows in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Interfund eliminations have not been made in the aggregation of this data. NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY A. Deficil Retained Earnings The Workers' Compensation internal service fired had a deficit retained earnings at June 30, 1999, of $28,954. As of July 1, 1999, the School Board is no longer self-insured for workers' compensation. B. Excess of Expenditures over Appropriations in Individual Funds The following individual accounts and funds had actual expenditures over budgeted expenditures for the year ended June 30, 1999: Unfavorable Fund General Fund Current: Regular programs Other instructional programs General administration Plant services Community service program Debt service: Principal retirement School Food Service Special Revenue Funds: Parish-wide Maintenance Ruston No. 1 Maintenance and Operation Simsboro No. 3 Maintenance and Operation 
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Bu~ Actual Variance 
$15,141,596 2,213,400 573,156 1,407,470 15,137 59,560 2,253,100 886,913 255,101 48,988 

$15,254,284 2,233,650 589,757 1,429,183 15,599 63,533 2,303,168 900,936 257,677 49,195 

$112,688 20,250 16,601 21,713 462 3,973 50,068 14,023 2,576 207 



Lincoln Parish School Board Ruston, Louisiana Notes to the General-Purpose Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1999 
NOTE 3- LEVIED TAXES "File School Board levies taxes on real and business personal property located within Lincoln Parish's boundaries. Property taxes are levied by the School Board on property values assessed by the Lincoln Parish Tax Assessor and approved by the state of Louisiana Tax Commission. The Lincoln Parish Sheriffs Office bills and collects property taxes for the School Board. Collections are remitled to the School Board monthly. Property Tax Calendar 
Assessment date Tax bills mailed Total laxes are due Lien date Penalties and interest are added Tax sale 

January 1, 1998 On or about November 25, 1998 December 31, 1998 January 1, 1999 January 1, 1999 May 1, 1999 Assessed values are established by the Lincoln Parish Tax Assessor each year on a uniform basis at the following ratios of assessed value to fair market value, 10% land 10% residential improvements 15% industrial improvements 15% machinery 15% commercial improvements 25% public service properties, excluding land 

State law requires the Sheriff to collect property taxes in the calendar year in which the assessment is made. Property taxes become delinqaent January 1 of the following year. If taxes are not paid by the due date, taxes bear interest at the rate of 1.25% per month until the taxes are paid. After notice is given to the delinquent taxpayers, the Sheriff is required by the Constitution of the State of Louisiana to sell the least quantity of property necessary to settle the taxes and interest owed. All property taxes are recorded in the general, special revenue funds (maintenance funds) and debt service funds on the basis explained in Note 1. Revenues in such funds are recognized in the accounting period in which they become measurable and available. Property taxes are considered measurable in the calendar year of the tax levy. Delinquenl taxes considered to be uncollectible are not recorded as revenues. Property taxes receivable are considered available because they are substantially collected within 60 days subsequent to year end. 

27 



Lincoln Parish School Board Ruston, Louisiana 
Notes to the General-Purpose Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1999 NOTE 3 - LEVIED TAXES (Continued) The tax roll is not prepared by the tax assessor until November of each year; therefore, the amount of 1999 property taxes to he collected within the next year is not known. As a result, no property tax receivable for 1999 taxes is included on the accompanying combined balance sheet. The following is a summary of authorized and levied (tax rate per $1,000 Assessed Value) ad valorem taxes 

Parish-w/de taxes: Constitutional Special maintenance and operation Special repair and equipment Maintenance and operation District taxes: Maintenance and operations Ruston School District #1 Simsboro School District #3 Dubach School District #5 Bond and interest Ruston School District #1 Simsboro School District #3 Choudrant School District #6 

Date of Voter .__Approval Statutory Jan. 21,1989 Jan. 21,1989 Jan. 16,1993 
Apr. 5,1994 July 2,1985 Jan, 21,1989 

Authorized 
4.99 5.14 5.14 2.09 
3.05 3.19 3.33 Variable Variable Variable 

Levied Millage 4.99 5.14 5,14 12.09 
3.01 3.19 3.33 17.00 18.20 28.00 

Expiration Date StNutory 2008 2008 2002 
2003 2005 2008 2005 2006 2007 

The difference between authorized and levied mfllages are tb.e result of the reassessment of taxable property required by Article 7, Section 23 of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974. NOTE 4 -. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS At June 30, 1999, the School Board has cash and cash equivalents (book balances) totaling $3,997,447 as follows 

At year-end, the School Board's carrying amount of deposits was $5,431,447 (includes $1,434,000 of time deposits) and the bank balance was $8,341,193. Of the bank balance, $4,581,630 was covered by federal depository insurance or by collateral held by the School Board's agent in the School Board's name (GASB Category 1). $3,719,516 was collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution's trust department or agent but not in the School Board's name (GASB Category 3). The remaining balance of $40,047 is not secured by the pledge of securities and is a violation of state law. 
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Lincoln Parish School Board Ruston, Louisiana Notes to the General-Purpose Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1999 NOTE 4 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) Even though the pledged securities are considered uncollateralized (Category 3) under the provisions of GASB Statement 3, Louisiana Revised Statute 39:1229 imposes a statutory requirement on the custodial bank to advertise and sell the pledged securities within 10 days of being notified by the School Board that the fiscal agent has failed to pay deposited funds upon demand. The School Board maintains a sweep account for the operating funds of the School Board. Each fund's cash account is swept daily for excess cash. Excess amounts are invested in an overnight repurchase agreement which is invested in United States government treasury bills, treasury notes, and certificates of deposit. The U. S. government investments are held in the School Board's name through a book-entry system at the Federal Reserve Bank, therefore, these investments were considered to be Category 1 which includes investments that are collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution's trust department or its safekeeping agent in the School Board's name. Because the repurchase agreements mature daily and are highly liquid, the School Board treats these repurchase agreements as cash equivalents. Investments are categorized into these three categories of credit risk 1. Insured or registered, or securities held by the School Board or its agent in the School Board's name 
2. Uninsured and unregistered, with securities held by the counter party's trust department or agent in the School Board's name. 3. Uninsured and unregistered, with securities held by the counter party, or by its trust department or agent but not in the School Board's name. At year end, the School Board investment balances included the following 

Carrvin~ Amoun Category Fair 2 3 Value~ .. Time deposits $ - $1,434,000 $ - $ U. S. treasury securities_l,812,124 Total ~!,812,124 $1,434,000 Investments not subject to categorization: External investment poo Total investments 
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Amortized Cost Cost Total Carrying Amount - $ $1,434,000 $1,434,000 1,812,124 1,812,124 

~ ,343,287 ~343,287 _$1,343,2!7 ~  $1,434 000 $4,589,411 



Lincoln Parish School Board Ruston, Louisiana 
Notes to tile General-Purpose Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1999 NOTE 5- RECEIVABLES The receivables of $1.687,157 at June 30, 1999, are as follows 

Taxes: Ad valorem Sales tax lntcrgovernmcntal - grants Federal State Other Stop-loss receivable 

Special Debt Internal General Revenue Service Service Fund Funds Funds . Fund Total $ 8,870 $ 4,405 $6,364 634,596 2,968 537,375 410,123 18,840 1,001 62,615 
19,639 634.596 540,343 410,123 19,841 62,615 Total $1,07_5,397 ~542,781 $6,364 $62,615 $1,687,157_ NOTE 6- FIXED ASSETS The changes in general fixed assets are as follows 

Land Buildings hnprovements other than buildings Furniture and equipment Vehicles Construction in Progress 

Balance J__uly 1, 1998 Additions $ 360,835 28,741,813 123,535 7,026,193 2.124.703 
$ 500 303,781 46,063 516,884 240,111 1633,3~48 

Balance Deletions June 30,1999 $ $ 361,335 
313,619 91,656 
29,045,594 169,598 7,229,458 2,273,158 163,348 
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Lincoln Parish School Board Ruston, Louisiana Notes to the General-Purpose Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1999 NOTE 7 - RETIREMENT SYSTEMS Plan description Substantially all School Board employees participate in either the Teachers' Retirement System or the School Employees' Retirement System (the Systems), which are cost-sharing, multiple-employer public employee retirement systems (PERS), Benefit provisions are ultimately approved and amended by the Louisiana Legislature. Participation in the Teachers' Retirement System is divided into two plans - the Teachers' Regular Plan and the Teachers' Plan A. In general, professional employees (such as teachers and principals) and lunchroom workers are members of the Louisiana Teachers' Retirement System (TRS); other employees, such as custodial personnel and bus drivers, are members of the Louisiana School Employees' Retirement System (LSERS). Generally, all full-time employees are eligible to participate in the system. With respect to the Teachers' Retirement System Regular Plan, normal retirement is at age sixty with ten years of service, or at any age with twenty years of service. The formula for annual maximum retirement benefits is generally two percent (with less than twenty-five years of service) or 2.5 percent (with twenty-five or more years of service) times the years of creditable service times the average salary of the thirty-six highest successive months (plus $300 applicable to persons bccoming members prior to July 1, 1986). Under the Teachers' Retirement System Plan A, normal retirement is generally at any age with 30 or more years of creditable service, at age fifty-five with at least twenty-five years of creditable service and at age sixty with at least ten years of creditable service. The retirement benefit formula is generally three percent times the years &creditable service times the average salary of the thirty-six highest successive months plus $24 per year of service. Employees participating in the School Employees' Retirement System are eligible for normal retirement after thirty years of service, or after twenty-five years of service at age fifty-five or after ten years of service at age sixty. The maximum retirement allowance is computed at 2.5 percent times the highest thirty-six months of average salary, times the years of service plus a supplement of $2.00 per month times the years of service. Both TRS and LSERS issue annual financial reports. The reports can be obtained by telephoning or writing to the following: Teachers' Retirement System of Louisiana Post Office Box 94123 Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70804-9123 (225) 925-6446 
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Louisiana School Employees' Retirement System Post Office Box 44516 Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70804 (225) 925-6484 



Lincoln Parish School Board Ruston, Louisiana Notes to tile General-Purpose Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1999 NOTE 7 - RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued) Funding, Policy Each system is administered and controlled at the state level by a separate board of trustees, with contribution rates approved and amended by the Louisiana Legislature. Benefits of the systems are funded by employee and employer contributions. Benefits granted by the retirement systems are guaranteed by the state of Louisiana under provisions of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974. The School Board's employer contribution for the TRS, as provided by state law, is funded by the state of Louisiana through annual appropriations, by deductions from local ad valorem taxes, and by remittances from the School Board. For the LSERS, the School Board's employer contribution is funded by the state of Louisiana through annual appropriations. In addition, the employer does not remit to the Teachers' Retirement System, Regular Plan or Plan A, the employer's contribution for the professional improvement program (PIP) portion of payroll. The PIP contribution is made directly to the Retirement System by the state of Louisiana. Contribution rates (as a percentage of covered salaries) for active plan members as established by the Louisiana Legislature for the year ended June 30, 1999, are as follows: 
Louisiana Teachers' Retirement System: Regular Plan A Louisiana School Employees' Retirement System 

Emplo,/ee 
8.00% 9.10% 6.35% 16.50% 16.50% 6.00% Total covered payroll of the School Board for TRS - Regular Plan, TRS - Plan A, and LSERS for the year ended June 30, 1999, amounted to $18,127,770, $292,202, and $1,846,852 respectively. Employer contributions for the year ended June 30, 1999, and each of the two preceding years are as follows: 

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 1997 June 30, 1998 June 30. 1999 

Annual TRS Actuarially Required Contribution $2,857,242 3,066,831 3,398.525 

LSERS Percentage of Annual Annual Required Actuarially Contribution Required Paid Contribution 91,45 92.89 80.04 $101,394 102,924 115.046 

Percentage of Annual Required Contribution Paid 106.22 100.36 96.37 Annual actuarially required contributions for each plan above is based on the plan's annual financial report for that year except for the year ended June 30, 1999. Each annual actuarially required contribution for the year ended June 30, 1999, is based upon each plan's animal financial report for the year ended June 30, 1998, which is the latest information available. 
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Lincoln Parish School Board Ruston, Louisiana 
Notes to tile General-Purpose Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1999 NOTE 8 - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS In accordance with state statutes, the Lincoln Parish School Board provides certain contimfing health care and life insurance benefits for its retired employees. Substantially all of the School Board's employees become eligible for these benefits if they reach normal retirement age while working for the School Board. These benefits for retirees and similar benefits for active employees were provided through a self-insurance program, whose monthly premiums are paid jointly by the employees and the School Board. The cost of retiree benefits totaled $568,661 for 1999 for approximately 274 retirees. NOTE 9 -ACCOUNTS, SALARIES AND OTHER PAYABLES The payables of $2,910,314 at June 30, 1999, are as follows 

Salaries and withholding Accounts lncun'ed but not reported claims 
Total NOTE 10 - COMPENSATED ABSENCES 

General Fund $2,159,853 177,794 
Special Revenue Funds $120,901 91,620 

Internal Service Funds 
360,146 

Total $2,280,754 269,414 _ 360,146 $360,146 $2,910,314 
At June 30, 1999, employees of the School Board have accumulated and vested $1,957,896 of employee leave benefits including $246,598 ofsalary-relaled benefits. Employee leave benefits which are computed in accordance with GASB Codification Section C60. This amount is not expected to be paid from current available resources; therefore the liability of $1,957,896 is recorded within the general long-term debt accom~t group. 
NOTE 11 - AGENCY FUND DEPOSITS DUE OTHERS A summary of changes in school activity agency fund deposits due others for the year ended June 30, 1999, is as follows: 
Agency funds: School activity 

Balance Balance July 1,199gg Additions Deductions June 30. 1999 $318,46_22. $1578,699 $1,465,101 
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NOTE 12 -. LEASES 

Lincoln Parish School Board Ruston, Louisiana Notes to the General-Purpose Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1999 
The School Board records items under capital leases as an asset and an obligation in the accompanying financia statements. The following is an analysis of equipment under capital leases: Type 3 school buses 5 school buses 2 copiers 
Total 

$447,546 190,269 52,896 
The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments under capital leases, together with tile present value of the net minimum lease payments, as of June 30, 1999: Years ending June 30, 2000 2001 2002 2003 Totalminimum lease payments Less amounts representing interest 

13 Buses 5 Buses 2 Copiers Total $ 59,004 59,004 59,004 59,00_4 236,016 35,02.29 Present value of net minimum lease payments $200,987 NOTE 13 - GENERAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS 

$ 25,085 25,085 25,085 .. 25,085 100,340 .._!14,890 
$12,308 12,308 12,308 6,157 43,081 5,931 
$ 96,397 96,397 96,397 _ 90,246 379,437 55,850 

The following is a summary of the long-term obligation transactions for the year ended June 30, 1999 
Balance, July 1, 1998 Additions Deductions 

Notes Payable Bonds Capital Leases Compensated Payable. Payable Absences Total $ 211,692 $ 11,687,000 $ 392,990 $ 1,504,073 
.(105,507) ~ 1,339,000) (694~03) 534,771 ( 80,948) $ 13,795,755 534,771 (1,594,858) Balance, June30, 1999 $ 106,185 _$_10,348,000 $ 323,587 $ 1,957,896 $ 12,735,668 
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Lincoln Parish School Board Ruston, Louisiana Notes to the General-Purpose Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1999 NOTE 13 - GENERAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued) The individual issues are as follows 
RUSTON NO. 1 : December l, 1991 SIMSBORO NO. 3: February 1, 1978 November 1, 1993 CHOUDRANT NO. 6: February 1, 1978 April 1, 1999 November 1, 1993 SERIES 1995 Certificate of Indebtedness SERIES 1998 Certificate of Indebtedness Tota 

Original Issue hlterest Rates $11,930,000 4,50 - 6.40% 
710,000 1,670,000 5.00 - 5.50% 2.60 - 4.30% 530,000 5.00 - 5.50% 417,000 4.35% - 4.80% 1,255,000 2.60% - 4.30% 265,000 
100,000 

5.34% 
4.35% 

Final Payment Due 2005 
2003 2006 2003 2007 2006 2000 
2002 

Interest Principal to Outstanding Maturi~ Jnne 30, 1999 $1,729,583 $ 7,520,000 
28,325 223,385 200,000 1,215,000 21,175 150,000 88,375 388,000 154,613 875,000 4,910 46,493 
5,872 _ 59,692 $2,256,238 .$~0,454,185 All bond principal and interest requirements are funded in accordance with Louisiana law by the annual ad valorem lax levy on taxable properly within the parish. The notes payable is funded by the Title I federal program. At June 30, 1999, the School Board has accumulated $1,927,767 in the debt service funds for future debt requirements. The bonds are due as follows: 

Year Ending June 30,_ 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 Thereafter 

Notes Principal Payments $ 70,493 26,000 9.692 
Interest Payments 

Bond Principal Payments $ 6,781 $ 1,424,000 3,153 1,518,000 848 1,627,000 1,731,000 1,740,000 . 2,308,000 

Interest Payments Total $ 590,106 510,958 425,436 332,650 232,574 153,732 
$ 2,091,380 2,058,111 2,062,976 2,063,650 1,972,574 2,461,732 $10,78_2 $10,348,000 $2,245,45fi6 $1_2,710,423 In accordance with Louisiana Revised Statute 39:562, the School Board is legally restricted from incurring long-term bonded debt in excess of 33 percent of the assessed value of taxable property. At June 30, 1999, the statutory limit is $55,171,143, and outstanding net bonded debt totals $8,420,233. 



Lincoln Parish School Board Ruston, Louisiana Notes to the General-Purpose Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1999 NOTE 14 - INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS Due FromfFo Other Funds 
Receivable Fund General Fund 

Operating Transfers 
General Fund Special Revenue Funds Title I Parish-wide Maintenance Special Programs Debt Service Funds: Series 1995 Sinking 
Tota 

payable Fund Special Revenue Funds Title I Title VI Adult Education Title II Ruston No. 1 Maintenance and Operations Special Programs Title IV 

NOTE 15 - RESERVED AND DESIGNATED FUND BALANCES Reserved for Inventory 

Amount 
$270,804 1,335 5,724 12,823 28,364 132,566 12,419 

Transfersln Transfers Out $ 4,974 $100,001 61,939 100,000 740 57,706 $162,680 $162,680 

This amount represents tile portion of fund balance relating to inventory on hand which is therefore unavailable to be expended for other purposes. /eserved for Prelmid Items This amount represents the portion of fund balance relating to expenditures that will benefit fllture periods 
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Lincoln Parish School Board Ruston, Louisiana Notes to the General-Purpose Financial Statements As of and for tile Year Ended June 30, 1999 NOTE 15 - RESERVED AND DESIGNATED FUND BALANCES (Continued) Reserved for Instruction, Reoairs and Construction 
One-third of the one-half cent sales tax, approved May 19, 1979, and rededicated March 8, 1988, is dedicated for constructing, acquiring, erecting, improving, and/or repairing schools and school-related facilities, and for paying the cost of utilities therefore, and for improving instruction, providing instructional materials and student services and curriculum enrichment, including salaries for over-staffed instructional positions, io and for the public schools. Reserved for Salary Imorovements Two-thirds of the one-half cent sales tax, approved May 19, 1979, and rededicated March 8, 1988, and the one- half cent sales tax approved January 16, 1993, is dedicated for paying salaries, retirement and other benefits. ~,eserved for Debt Service This balance is reserved for the payment of principal and interest on bonded debt. NOTE 16 - LITIGATION AND CLAIMS Litigation At June 30, 1999, the School Board is involved in various litigation. It is the opinion of management and legal counsel for the School Board that potential claims against the School Board not covered by insurance would not materially affect the financial statements. Self-Insurance The School Board is partially self-insured for workers' compensation, and health insurance coverage. Claims are funded through employee contributions and operating funds of the School Board. The School Board maintains stop-loss coverage with an insurance company for claims in excess of $150,000 and $75,000 per occurrence for workers' compensation insurance coverage, and for health coverage, respectively. All known claims filed and an estimate of incurred but not reported claims based on experience of the School Board are made and accrued as necessary in the financial statements. Grant Disallowance The School Board participates in a number of state and federally assisted grant programs. The programs are subject to compliance audits under the single audit approaci~. Such audits could lead to requests for reimbursement by the grantor agency for expenditures disallowed under terms of the grants. School Board management believes that the amount of disallowances, if any, which may arise from future audits will not be material. 



Lincoln Parish School Board Ruston, Louisiana Notes to the General-Purpose Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1999 NOTE 16 - LITIGATION AND CLAIMS (Continued) Tax Arbitrage Rebate Under the Tax Reform Act of 1986, interest earned on the debt proceeds in excess of interest expense prior to the disbursement of the proceeds must be rebated to the Internal Revenue Service (IRS). Management believes there is no tax arbitrage rebate liability at year end. 
Year 2000 Compliant The turn of the century will be an exciting time for many, but could turn into a disaster unless plans have been made concerning year 2000 compliance for the School Board's computer systems. The basic problem lies in the way most computer software, both operating systems and application programs, calculate dates. Most programs use two digits to represent the last two years of the 19XX dates. Therefore, the programs are conditioned to expect dates between the years 1900 and 1999. If dates for the year 2000 are entered into these noncompliant programs, the programs will assume the year 2000 to be the year 1900. Many arithmetic calculations, such as due dates and interest calculations, will be incorrect. This problem, if not corrected, could cause all of the computer systems to malfunction. This would cause tremendous problems in important areas such as accounts payable and payroll, just to name a few. The School Board's management doesn't expect this matter to have any significant disruption or materia financial impact to the School Board. NOTE 17 - RISK MANAGEMENT 
The School Board initiated a risk management program for workers' compensation in fiscal year 1991. Premiums are paid into the workers' compensation internal service fund by all other funds and are available to pay claims, claim reserves and administrative costs of the program. During fiscal year 1999, a total of $83,037 was paid in benefits and administrative costs. An excess coverage insurance policy covers individual claims in excess of $150,000. An amount for self-insurance losses of $62,086 has been accrued as a liability and was calculated by the third-party administrator. Inter fund premiums are based primarily upon the individual funds' claims experience and are reported as expenditures in the individual funds. The internal service fund - workers' compensation incurred a net loss for the fiscal year 1999 of $83,629 and at June 30, 1999, had a retained earnings deficit of $28,954. The School Board initiated a risk management program for employees health insurance in fiscal year 1990. Premiums are paid into the group health insurance internal service fund by all other funds and are available to pay claims, claim reserves and administrative costs of the program. During fiscal year 1998 a total of $3,857,569 and $572,830, respectively, was paid in benefits and administrative costs. An excess coverage insurance policy covers individual claims in excess of $75,000. Interfund premiums are based primarily upon tbe individual funds' payroll and are reported as expenditures in the individual fimds. The incurred but not reported claims at year end of $298,060 has been accrued as a liability based upon the third party administrator's calculation using historical claim experience. 
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Lincoln Parish School Board Ruston~ Louisiana Notes to the General-Purpose Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1999 NOTE 17 - RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) The internal service fund - group health insurance incurred a net income during the fiscal year 1999 of $155,459 and at June 30, 1999, had a retained earnings of $153,718. Changes in the claims amount in previous fiscal years were as follows 
Workers' Compensation 1997-1998 1998-1999 Health Insurance: 1997-1998 1998-1999 

Beginning of Fiscal Year Liability_. $ 23,841 10.953 259,601 228.521 

Claims and Changes in Estimates $ 48,666 134,170 3,243,779 3,908,702 

Benefit Payments and Claims $ 61,554 83,037 3,274,859 3,839,163 

Balance at Fiscal Year-End $ 10,953 62,086 228,521 298,060 Tile School Board continues to carry commercial insurance for all other risks of loss. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. NOTE 18 - ON-BEHALF PAYMENTS FOR FRINGE BENEFITS AND SALARIES On-behalf payments for fringe benefits and salaries are direct payments made by an entity (the paying agent) to a third-party recipient for the employees of another, legally separate entity (the employer entity). GASB Statement No. 24 requires employer governments to recognize revenue and expenditures or expenses for these on-behalf payments. The state of Louisiana made pension contributions (regarding Professional Improvement Program) directly to tile Teachers' Retirement System of Louisiana on behalf of the School Board in the amount of $115,251. This amount was recognized as state revenue and a corresponding expenditure in the applicable fund from which tile salary was paid. 
NOTE 19 - DEFEASANCE OF DEBT The School Board defensed in the prior year certain general obligation bonds by placing the proceeds of new bonds ill an irrevocable trust to provide tbr all future debt service payments on the old bonds. Accordingly, the trust account assets and the liability for the defeased bonds are not included in the School Board's financial statements. On June 30, 1999, $385,000 of bonds outstanding are considered defensed. 
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Lincoln Parish School Board Ruston, Louisiana Notes to the General-Purpose Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1999 NOTE 20 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS The School Board purchased three new and two used buses in July and October of 1999. The total cost of the buses was $213,500. In the October 1999 meeting, the School Board called for an election on January 15, 2000, for a half cent sales tax and a ten mill ad valorem tax. The taxes are primarily for teacher and support staff pay raises, technology, and will also provide retiree single health premiums. The School Board installed new phone systems at four sites with a total cost, after e-rate discounts, of approximately $76,000. Installation began in July 1999 and will continue through January 2000. As of July 1, 1999, the School Board is no longer self-insured for workers' compensation 
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Lincoln Parish School Board Ruston, Louisiana 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 
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Lincoln Parish School Board Ruston, Louisiana Required Supplemental Information June 30, 1999 
On March 29, 1999, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Technical Bulletin (TB) 99-1, Disclosures about Year 2000 Issues - an amendment of Technical Bulletin 98-1. The amendment, among other things, provides that required year 2000 disclosures may be reported as required supplementary information. The School Board reported the year 2000 disclosures as required supplemental information. Year 2000 Information 
The year 2000 issue is the result of shortcomings in many electronic data processing systeals and other electronic equipment that may adversely affect the government's operations as early as fiscal year 1999. To date, the School Board has not experienced any such shortcomings in targeted systems and equipment. The School Board has completed an inventory of computer systems and other electronic equipment that may be affected by the year 2000 issue and that are considered mission critical in conducting school board operations. These systems are financial reporting, payroll, employee benefits system, and educational statistics reporting. 
As of this date, the financial reporting system has been assessed and remediation has been completed. The payroll system has been assessed and remediated. The District utilizes an external service organization for the claims administration of its self-insured health and dental benefit plan. The external service organization is responsible for the remediation of this system. The organization has assured the School Board the claims processing system has been remediated and the system has been tested. 
The state of Louisiana distributes a substantial sum of money to the Board in the form of payments from the Minimum Foundation Program (MFP) and federal and state grants. The MFP payments are based on student and financial data that is collected from the Lincoln Parish School Board and its schools. As of this date, the Lincoln Parish School Board has remediated the student data collection system at all sites. Further, the state processes a significant amount of financial and non-financial information about the Board through the state's Department of Education management information system. The state is responsible for the remediation of these systems. 
Because of the unprecedented nature of the year 2000 issue, its effects and the success of related remediation efforts will not be fidly determinable until the year 2000 and thereafter. Management cannot assure the School Board is or will be year 2000 ready, that the School Board's remediation efforts will be successful in whole or in part, or that parties with whom the School Board does business will be year 2000 ready. 
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Lincoln Parish School Board Ruston, Louisiana 

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 



Lincoln Parish School Board Ruston, Louisiana GENERAL FUND 
Tile general fund is used to account for resources traditionally associated with government which are not required legally or by sound financial management to be accounted for in another fund. 
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ASSETS Cash and cash equivalents Investments Receivables Due from other funds Prepaid items TOTAL ASSETS 
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY Liabilities: Accounts, salaries and other payables Total Liabilities 

LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Ruston, Louisiana GENERAL FUND ACCOUNTS Combining Balance Sheet June 30, 1999 

Equity Fund Balances: Reserved for prepaid items Reserved for instruction, repairs and construction Reserved for salary improvements Unreserved and undesignated fund balance 
Total Equity TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 
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1967 GENERAL SALES TAX ACCOUNTS ACCOUNT 
273,797 $ 1,812,124 430,730 464.035 6.775 

9,364 $ 0 211,478 0 0 

1979 SALES TAX ACCOUNT 
706,247 0 215,531 0 0 2,987,461} 220,842 $ 921,778 

2,071,952~.~ 3,033 $ 194,889 $ 20~71952 $ 3,033 $ 194,889 
6,775 $ 0 O 05 0 0 

0 538,625 189.846 g08 7,~34 217,809 (1,582) ~_ 9155,~9_09~.~ 217,809 $ 726,889 .~ 2~987,461 $ 220f842 $ 921r778 



 

1993 SALES TAX ACCOUNT 
Exhibit 1 

1993 AD VALOREM TAX ACCOUNT TOTAL 
353,302 $ 651,435 211,848 0 0 

364,007 $ 406,446 5,810 0 0 
1,706,717 2,870,005 1,075,397 464,035 6.775 $ 1~216r585 $,, 776T263 $ 6~122r929 

~L_ 52,240 $ 15,533 ~; 2,337,647 
~_ 52~240 ~ 15~533 $ 2,337,647_ 
05 0 0 1,164,345 

05 0 0 6,775 538,625 189.846 760,730. 3,050,036 1,164,345 ~;_ 760,730 $ 3,785,282 



REVENUES Local sources: Taxes: Ad valorem Sales and use Interest earnin9s Other State sources: Equalization Other Federal sources 
Total Revenues 

LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Ruston, Louisiana GENERAL FUND ACCOUNTS Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances ~or tb.e Year Ended June 30,1999 

EXPENDITURES Current: Instruction: Regular programs Special programs Other instructional programs Support services: Student services Instructional staff support General administration School administration Business services Plant services Student transportation services Central services Food services Community service program Facilities acquisition and construction Debt service: Principal retirement Interest and bank charges Total Expenditures 
EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 
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GENERAL ACCOUNTS 1967 SALES TAX ACCOUNT 
1,370,987 $ 0 245,278 159,829 ~7,7t~7,656 1,701,232 41~714 

0 $ 2,250,662 18,957 49,362 
0 0 0 

1979 SALES TAX ACCOUNT 
0 2,250,662 56,781 205 
0 0 0 

~; 21,306~5966 ~_ 2,318,981 L. 2,307,648 
11,169,321 $ 2,273,854 1.728,414 
924,795 1,023,003 340,063 1,571,771 284,749 766,139 1,174,463 42,784 7,105 15,599 189,586 63,533 _ 20~556 

1,213,822 $ 415,085 103,377 72,937 77,484 35,249 140,617 21,244 82,687 138,322 1,203 52,679 O 0 
0 O 

1,316,280 176,590 162,423 97,673 169,395 23,884 93,249 10,861 58,486 82,923 2,359 96,007 0 0 0 fi 21,595~75452~354,706 ~_ 2,310,130 
~_ (28~ $___~35,725) $ (2,482) 



 

1993 1993 SALES TAX AD VALOREM ACCOUNT TAX ACCOUNT 
05 2,250,662 67,038 0 0 0 0 

1,514,111 $ 0 40,638 59.106 0 0 0 

Exhibit 2 
TOTAL 
2,885,098 6,751,986 428,692 268.502 17,787,556 1,701,232 41,714 2,317~700~ 1,613,855 

1,210,997 $ 217,940 181.050 
66,217 166,977 22,898 113,767 11,527 70,954 105,210 2,949 119,194 0 0 

343,864 $ 12,596 38.386 
60,615 4,190 167,663 44,029 7,495 450,917 276,446 0 0 0 249,246 

15,254,284 3,096,065 2,233,650 
1,222,237 1,441,049 589,757 1,963,433 335,876 1,429,183 1,777,384 49,295 274,985 15,599 438.831 0 0 63.533 0 0 20,556 

2,2896~O_80S 1,655,447_$ 30,205,717 
~_. 28 0=~_20 _$_ (41,592) (CONTINUED) 48 



LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Ruston, Louisiana GENERAL FUND ACCOUNTS Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances For the Year Ended June 30. 1999 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) Operating transfers in Operating transfers out Sale of assets Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
EXCESS(Deficiency) OF REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR FUNDBALANCESATEND OFYEAR 
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GENERAL ACCOUNTS 1967 SALES TAX ACCOUNT 
4,974 $ (100,001) 0 

1979 SALES TAX ACCOUNT 
0 $ 0 0 0 0 900 $ (95,02~_ ~_~__ 0 $ 900 

$ (384,185) $ (35,725) $ (1,582) . 1,299,694 253,534 . 728,471 



 

1993 1993 SALES TAX AD VALOREM ACCOUNT TAX ACCOUNT 
05 0 0 

Exhibit 2 
TOTAL 
0 $ 0 0 4,974 (~00,001) 9O0 

0 $ 0 ~L (94,127)_ 
28,020 $ (41,592) $ (435,064) 1,136~325 -__ 80~ 4,220,346 

(CONCLUDED 
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TITLE I 
Lincoln Parish School Board Ruston, Louisiana SPECIAl, REVENUE FUNDS 

To improve the educational opportunities &educationally deprived children by helping them succeed in the regular school program, attain grade level proficiency and improve achievement in basic and more advanced skills. Primarily for provision of compensatory instructional activities to educationally deprived children that reside in low- income areas and have been selected on the basis of a needs assessment. Services supplement, not supplant, those normally provided by state and local educational agencies. 
TITLE V| To assist state and Iocal educational agencies to improve elementary and secondary education. Grants are awarded for students at risk of failure in school; instructional materials; school-wide improvements and effective school programs; training and professional development; early identification of children with reading disabilities, personal excellence of students and student achievements; and innovative enhancements projects to the educational program and climate of the school. ADULTEDUCATION To improve educational opportunities for adults and to encourage the establishment of adult education programs that will enable all adults to acquire basic educational skills necessary to function in a literate society, enable adults who so desire to complete secondary school, and enable adults to benefit from job training and retraining programs and obtain productive employment to more fully enjoy the benefits and responsibilities of citizenship. Special emphasis is given to programs of instruction in computational skills and in speaking, reading, or writing English for those adults who are educationally disadvantaged. TITLE 11 To improve the skills of teachers and the quality of instruction in mathematics and science, also to increase the accessibility of such instruction to all students. SCilOOL FOOD SERVICE 
To assist through cash grants and food donations in providing a nutritious breakfast and lunch service for schoo students and to encourage the domestic consumption of nutritious agricultural commodities. 
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ARISll-WIDE MAINTENANCE 
Lincoln Parish School Board Ruston, Louisiana SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

The parish-wide maintenance fund accounts for thc proceeds of a specific parish-wide ad valorem tax to be used for maintenance and upkeep of school facilities. 
RUSTON SCIIOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 MAINTENANCE AND OPERATION The Ruston School District No. 1 maintenance and operation fund accounts for the proceeds ofa 3-mil Ruston School District ad valorem tax to be used for the utilities of the schools in the district. S1MSBORO SCIIOOL DISTRICT NO. 3 MAINTENANCE AND OPERATION The Simsboro School District No. 3 maintenance and operation fund accounts for the proceeds ofa 3-mil Simsbom School District ad valorem tax to be used for the utilities of the schools in the district. 
DUBAClt SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 5 MAINTENANCE AND OPERATION The Dubach School District No. 5 maintenance and operation fund accounts for the proceeds of a 3-mil Dubach School District ad valorem tax to be used for maintaining and operating the school facilities in the district including the payment of the cost of the utilities. SPECIAL PROGRAMS The special programs fund accounts for various federal grants to the School Board. All of the grants are restricted for special purposes. TITLE IV (DRUG FREE 
To establish state and local programs of alcohol and drug abuse education and prevention coordinated with related community efforts and resources. (Concluded) 



ASSETS Cash and cash equivalents Investments Receivables Deposits Inventory 
TOTAL ASSETS 
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY Liabilities: Accounts, salaries & other payables Due to other funds Deferred revenues 
Tota] Liabilities Equity Fund Ba/ances: Reserved for inventory Unreserved and undesignated Total Equity 

$ 

LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Ruston, Louisiana SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS Combining Balance Sheet June 30.1999 

TITLE I TITLE VI 
05 0 349,958 0 0 

ADULT EDUCATION 
05 0 1,335 0 0 
05 0 7,392 0 0 

TITLE SCHOOL FOOD SERVICE 
05 0 12,823 0 
751,447 0 0 O 0 57,06--0 ~; 349,958 $ 1,335 ~  ~; 12,823 $ 808,507 

10,961 $ 270.804 68 193 05 1,335 0 1,668 $ 5,724 0 0 $ 107,667 12,823 0 0 __ 23,755 $ 349,958 ~ 33~35~L~ 7,392~ ~ 22 
$ 05 0 05 0 05 0 05 0 33,305 643.780 
$ _A } 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 677,085 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $ 349,958 ~; 1 3..~35 $=.~  $ 12,823 $ 808,507 
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PARISHWIDE MAINTENANCE 
SCHOOL DISTRICTS RUSTON NO, I SIMBSORO NO. 3 DUBACH NO. 5 MAINTENANCE MAINTENANCE MAINTENANCE SPECIAL TITLE IV & OPERATIONS & OPERATIONS & OPERATIONS PROGRAMS (DRUG FREE) 
05 101,931 719 0 
12,210 $ O 339 0 

1,315 $ 30,579 5 0 
05 0 153,446 0 0 0 O 0 0 
05 O 12,419 0 0 

Exhibit 3 

TOTAL 
948,972 285,406 542,781 2,500 57,060 

35,946 $ 28,364 $ 3,964 $ 3,071 $ 0 28,364 6 O 0 0 0 0 20,880 $ 132,566 0 05 12,419 0 212,521 464,035 91,948 
$ ~946 ~ 56,728 $ 3,964~__ 30,~71L~ ~ $ 12,419~  
$ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 33,305 3077,.~595 45922 8585 288,~828 0 0 1,034,910 $ 307jZ~95~ 45,922L 8,585[____288=~_285 0 ~. 0~068215 
$ 343,741~ 102,650 $ 12,5495318..~.~.995..~ ~ 12419~  



REVENUES Local sources: Taxes: Ad valorem Interest earnings Food service Other State sources: Equalization Other Federal sources 
Total Revenues 

LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Ruston, Louisiana SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 

EXPENDITURES Current: Instruction: Regular pro9rams Special programs Other instructional programs Support services: Instructional staff support General administration Plant services Student transportation services Food services Community services Facilities acquisition and construction Debt service: Principal retirement Interest and bank charges Totat Expenditures 

ADULT TITLE I TITLE VI EDUCATION TITLE II 
$ 0 $ 0 0 0 0 0 1 335 179 

05 0 0 0 0 0 40.481 

05 0 0 0 0 0 

05 0 0 0 
0 0 

SCHOOL FOOD SERVICE 
o 34,373 387,043 814 
370,459 0 286~6~_69 283.~O90 1,496,895 1,335,179 L__404~4~_81 ~___~ 28,669 ~ 26,390 $ 2269584 

05 913,154 0 
280,952 23,924 31,B10 0 O 23,400 0 0 0 

05 40,420 0 

0 

05 O 26.919 05 27,714 0 0 676 0 0 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,303,16E~ 0 0 0 0 0 ~_ 1,273,240 L_-~ ~___ 28~66669 $ 28,390_ $ 2,30316,~8_8 
EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES ~_ 61~~939 L 00 L 0 .~__0 L~I~ 
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SCHOOL DISTRICTS RUSTON NO. 1 SIMSBORO NO. 3 DUBACH NO. 5 PARISHWlDE MAINTENANCE MAINTENANCE MAINTENANCE SPECIAL TITLE IV MAINTENANCE & OPERATIONS & OPERATIONS & OPERATIONS PROGRAMS ]_DRUG FREE]_ 
644,078 $ 15,415 0 32,391 
0 96,124 9,300 

260,996 $ 3,618 0 0 
0 O 0 

38,267 $ 785 O 0 
0 O 0 

59,969 $ 1,381 0 0 
0 0 

05 0 0 O 
0 0 0 507,374_ 

Exhibit 4 

95 0 0 0 
0 0 38.828 

TOTAL 
1,003,332 55,572 387,043 33.205 
370,459 96,124 3.485.118 799~7308 $ 264,616 .$~ 39,052 ~____61,370 :.~5073~74 ~L ~_ 5,430,851_ 

0 $ 0 O 0 19,359 665,609 183,989 0 0 19,670 8,743 3,566 

05 O 0 0 7,817 249,860 0 0 0 0 0 0 

05 05 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,788 1,230 47,407 50,576 0 0 O 0 0 O 6 0 0 0 O O 

50,612 $ 357,778 62,509 23,102 6,318 6,315 0 0 0 0 0 0 

37,947 $ 0 0 0 881 0 0 O 0 0 

88,559 1,339,066 89.428 305,318 62,540 1,051,577 183,989 2,303,168 23,400 19.670 0 8,743 0 3,566 
90093~65 257,677~ 9198 ~___518~6065 506,634--$ 388285~ _ 
(1036~2~ ~ 6,939 ~L~10,143) ~__95~5~64 $ 740 ~_ 0 ~4~)_ 
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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Ruston. Louisiana SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS Combining StatementofRevenues, Expenditures and Changesin Fund Balances Forthe Year Ended June 30. 1999 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) Operating transfer sin Operating transfers out Sale of assets Insurance proceeds 

TITLE I TITLE Vl 
05 (61,939) 0 0 

ADULT EDUCATION TITLE II 
05 0 0 05 0 0 05 0 0 

SCHOOL FOOD SERVICE 
0 O 0 0 0 0 0 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) ~. (61,g39_)_ $ __ 0 k 0 $ O ~ O 
EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 0 
FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR 

0 0 $ (13,584) 0 690,669 
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SCHOOL DISTRICTS RUSTON NO. 1 SIMSBORO NO. 3 DUBACH NO. 5 PARISHWIDE MAINTENANCE MAINTENANCE MAINTENANCE MAINTENANCE & OPERATIONS & OPERATIONS & OPERATtONS 
1O0.O00 $ 0 903 05 0 0 __ 3,253 0 

SPECIAL PROGRAMS TITLE IV _~DRUG FREE E)_ 
05 05 05 0 0 (740) 0 O O 0 0 0 

Exhibit4 

05 O O 0 

TOTAL 
100,OOO (62,679) 903 3.253 

$ 104,156_~___ 0 ~ 0 ~_ ~____E~_~____o ;~ 41,477 
528 $ 6,939 $ (10,143) $ 9,564 $ 0 $ 0 $ (6,696) 307,267 _-- 38,983 1__8,728 __- 1_9_,264 0 1.074.911 $ 307,795 ~ 45,922 ~; 8,585 .~,_. 28,8285 05 0~ 1,068,215 
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Lincoln Parish School Board Ruston, Louisiana DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 
The debt service funds are used to accumulate monies to pay outstanding bond issues and the Certificate of Indebledness. The bonds were issued by the respective school districts to acquire land for building sites and to purchase, erect, and improve school buildings, equipment, and furnishings. The bond issues are financed by an ad valorem tax on property within the legal boundaries of the respective school districts. The proceeds of the Certificate of Indebtedness funded the cost of two computer labs for the Title I program. One certificate was issued in the 1995-96 fiscal year to be repaid over a three-year period, and another certificate was issued in the 1997-98 fiscal year to be repaid over a four-year period. The funds for repayment of these certificates arc allocated annually by the ]ASA Title ] program. The School Board utilizes the following debt service funds 
RUSTON SCHOOl. DISTRICT NO. 1 SIMSBORO SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 3 CHOUDRANT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 6 SERIES 1995 AND 1998 SINK1NG 
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ASSETS Cash and cash equivalents Investments Receivables TOTALASSETS 

LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Ruston, Louisiana DEBT SE'RViCE FUNDS Combining Balance Sheet June 30. 1999 
SCHOOL DISTRICTS SERIES RUSTON SIMSSORO CHOUDRANT 1995 AND 1998 NO. 1 NO. 3 NO. 6 SINKING 
378,947 $ 918.000 4,036 

36,983 $ 166.000 44,549 $ 350.000 1 9~9~37 391 26,924 $ 0 0 

Exhibit 5 
TOTAL 
487,403 1,434,000 6.364 ll3001983 .~, 204!920 $ 394 940 ~; 261924 $ 119271767 

EQUITY Fund Balances: Reserved for debt service $ 1,300,983 ~," 20_4,920 ~L 394 940 $ 26,924 $ 1,927,767 Total Equity 
TOTAL EQULTY $ 1,300,983 ~_ 204 9,~20 ~L~ 394,940 ~__ 26,924 $ 1,927,767 



REVENUES Local sources: Taxes: Ad vatorem Interest earnings Other Total Revenues EXPENDITURES Current: Instruction: General administration Debt service: Principal retirement Interest and bank charges Total Expenditures 

LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Ruston. Louisiana DEBT SERVICE FUNDS Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Fund Balances For the Year Ended June 30. 1999 SCHOOL DISTRICTS SERIES Exhibit 6 RUSTON SIMSBORO CHOUDRANT 1995 AND 1998 NO. 1 NO. 3 NO. 6 SINKING TOTAL 
1,472,981 $ 53.135 218,313 $ 8.834 0 0 199,960 $ 24,836 60 0 $ 1,891,254 0 86,805 0 60 $ 1,526,116 $ 22714,~7 $ 224,856 ~L~ L 1,978,119_ 
$ 44,151 $ 995,000 621,492 _ 

6,486 $ 5,941 $ 0 $ 56.578 175,000 72.112 169,000 69.475 105,507 1,444,507 7,319 670,398 $ 1,560,643 ~5359~85 244,416 ~$~,826 $ 2,171,483 
EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES _$ (34,527) $ (26 45~ $ (19,560) ~ L(193,364) OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) Operating transfers in $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 57,706 $ 57,706 Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ 0 $ 0 $ .05 57,706 $ 57,706_ EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES $ (34,527) $ (26,451) $ (19,560) $ (55,120) $ (135,658 FUND BALANCES, AT BEGINNING OFYEAR 1,335,510 FUND BALANCES, AT END OF YEAR 

231.371 414.500 82.044 2.063.425 



Lincoln Parish School Board Ruston, Louisiana INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 
The internal service funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for and the payment of beucfits by the School Board's risk retention programs. The School Board maintains the following risk retention funds: Workers' Compensation -- This fund, which began in fiscal year 1991, is used to account for the payment of workers' compensation benefits. Fund revenues are derived from govemnaent allocations. These revenues are planned to match: (1) expenses of insurance premiums in excess of risk retention amounts; (2) estimated claim losses resulting from risk retention programs which include estimated liabilities for claims incurred buC not yet reported at year end, and (3) operating expenses. Group Health Insurance -- Monies in this fund are received from three sources: employee deductions from payroll, 1967 sales tax fund alad general fund. Monies are used to pay employee health insurance claims, the administrative cost to the insurance administrator for administration of the plan and processing medical claims, cost of excess and specific insurance to protect the fund from exposure to large claims, hospital pre- certification, and life insurance with an insurance carrier. 
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ASSETS Cash and cash equivalents Receivables TOTAL ASSETS 
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY Liabilities: Accounts payable Equity: Retained Earnings (Deficit) TOTAL EiQUrfY (Deficit) 

LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Ruston, Louisiana PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE - INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS Combining Balance Sheet June 30. 1999 

TOTAL L.IABILITIES AND EQUITY 

WORKERS' COMPENSATION 

Exhibit 7 
GROUP HEALTH NSURANCE TOTAL 

33.132 $ 389,163 $ 0 62,615 422,295 62,615 

~____ 62,086 $ 298,060 $ 360,146 
~_____ (28,954~~__ 153,718 $ 124,764 L__ (28,954~ $ 153,718 $ 124,764 
L- 33,132.$ 451~778 ~ 484,910 
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OPERATING REV[-NUE Premiums OPERATING EXPENSES Administration Insurance premiums Claims 

LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Ruston. Louisiana PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE - INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Retained Earnings (Deficit) For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 

Total operating expenses 
Operating income (loss) 
NONOPERATING REVENUES Earnings on investments Net income (loss) 

WORKERS' COMPENSATION 

Exhibit 8 

GROUP HEALTH NSURANCE TOTAL 
L_. 50,000 _ $ 4,582j/Z_71_ $ 4,632,171 

0 $ 227,095 0 345,735 134,170 3,857 5=569_69 
$ 227,095 345,735 3.991.739 ~_. 134,170_$ 4,430,399 $ 4,564,569 

$ (84,170) $ 151,772 $ 67,602 
541 

$ (83,629) RETAINED EARNINGS (Deficit) AT BEGINNING OF YEAR ____ 54,675 
RETAINED EARNINGS (Deficit) AT END OF YEAR 

3,687 4,228 
$ 155,459 $ 71,830 (1,741) 52,934 



LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Ruston, Louisiana PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE - INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS Combining Statement of Cash Flows For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES Operating income (loss) Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided (used) for operating activities Increase (decrease) in payable (Increase) decrease in receivable Net cash provided (used) for operating activities CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES Earnings on investments Net cash provided (used) by investing activities Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 

65 

WORKERS' COMPENSATION GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE 

Exhibit 9 

TOTAL 
(84,170) $ 151,772 $ 67,602 
51,133 0 69,539 0 120,672 0 
(33,03j~_.$~ 221 311 $ 188,274 

__ 541 $ 3,687 $ 4,2288 541 ~__ 3,687. $ 4,228 
(32,496) $ 224,998 $ 192,502 

__ 65,628 164,166 229.793 



Lincoln Parish School Board Ruston, Louisiana 
SCHOOL ACTIVITY AGENCY FUND 

AGENCY FUNDS 
The activities of the various individual school accounts are accounted for in the school activity agency fund. While the accounts are under the supervision of the School Board, they belong to the individual schools or their student bodies and are not available for use by the School Board. 



SCHOOL 
Choudrant Elementary 
Choudran! High School Cypress Springs Elementary Dubach High School 
Glen View Elementary Hico Elementary Hillcrest Elementary A. Lewis School Lincoln Center Ruston Elementary 
Ruston High Schoo Ruston Junior High Secondary Alternative School 
Simsboro High 
Tota 

LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Ruston, Louisiana SCHOOL ACTIVITY AGENCY FUND Schedule of Changes in Deposits Due Others For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 
Balance, Beqinning 
9,030 $ 24,806 
22,594 31,781 22,081 
10,333 9,346 12,877 1,158 31,447 
70,545 38,851 1.089 

Additions Deductions 
31,290 $ 33,944 $ 136.705 142,854 
44,892 86,446 33,625 
36,099 42,426 58,414 21,855 34,002 
694,855 210.741 

45,950 86,107 34,096 
34,611 41,354 61,100 21,789 36,452 
598,698 199.139 7.923 8,163 

32,524 ____ 139,426 120,844 

Exhibit 10 

Balance Endina 
6,376 18,657 
21,536 32,120 21,610 
11,821 10,418 10,191 1,224 28,997 
166,702 50,453 849 51.106 

$ 3181462 .'L._.._. 1 578 699 $ 1 465 101 $432060 
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Lincoln Parish School Board Ruston, Louisiana GENERAl. 
Schedule of Compensation Paid Board Members For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 

Exhibit 11 

The schedule of compensation paid to School Board members is presented in compliance with House Concurrent Resolution No. 54 of the 1979 Session of the Louisiana Legislature. Compensation of the School Board members is included in the general administrative expenditures of the general fund. In accordance with Louisiana Revised Statute 17:56, the School Board members have elected the monthly payment method of compensation. Under this method, each member of the School Board receives $400 per month and the president receives $500 per mouth for performing the duties of the office. Mr. David Wright, President Mr. Robert E. Shadoin, Vice President 
Mr. William E. Abrahm Mr. Otha Anders Mr. Wayne Barfield Dr. Marly Beasley Mr. Curtis Dowling 
Mrs. Mattie M. Harrison Mr. James R. Kessler Mr. George Mack Mr. Joe E. Mitcham, Jr 
Mr. Allen Tuten Mr. Calvin Wilkerson Tota 

$ 6,000 4,800 
4,800 4,800 4,400 4,800 4,800 
2,400 4,800 4,800 4,800 
4,800 2,400 $58,400 
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The CPA N~er Ut~f es~J~ Tho Val~~ 
ALLEN, GREEN & COMPANY, LLP CERTW~EO PUEtLtC ACCOUNTANTS P. O. Box 6075 Monroe, LA 71211-6075 2414 Ferrand Street 2285 Benton Road Monroe, LA 71201 G.O.P. Building Ilk Suite 400 Telephone: (318) 388-4422 Bossier City, LA 71111 Facsimite: (318)388-4664 Telephone: (318)741-0205 Web site: www.allengreencpa com gacsBnlle: (318) 741-0207 

Report on Compliance and on lnternal Control Over Financial Reporting Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance With Government Audltln~ Standards 
Board Members Lincoln Parish School Board Ruston, Louisiana 

Ernest L. Allen, CPA A Professional Account ng Corp Tim Green, CPA Margie Williamson, CPA 

We have audited the financial statements of Lincoln Parish School Board, Ruston, Louisiana, as of and for the year ended June 30, 1999, and have issued our report thereon dated October 14, 1999. We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditj13g Standar~l.s, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Compliance As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School Board's financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of non- compliance that are required to be reported under G.__overnmen_[ Audit ng Standards Internal Control Over Financial Rer~ortin~ In planning and performing our audit, we considered the School Board's internal control over financial reporting in order to detennine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course ofperfomaing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses, Management Letter Items However, we noted other matters involving the internal control over financial reporting which we have reported to management of the School Board in a separate letter dated October 14, 1999, included later in this report. 

Member: American Instimlc of Certified Public Accountanls, Society of Louisiana Certified Public Accountants and Americatx Institute of Certified Public Accountants Division for CPA Firms Equal Opportunity Employer 



Board Members Lincoln Parish School Board Ruston, Louisiana This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board, management, federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Monroe, Louisiana October 14. 1999 
ALI_,EN, GREEN & COMPANY, LLP 
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ALLEN, GREEN & COMPANY, LLP CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS P. O. Box 6075 Monroe, LA 71211-6075 2414 Ferrand Street Monroe, LA 71201 Telephone: t318} 388-4422 Facsimile: (318) 388-4664 Web site: www.allengreencpa.corn 
2285 Benton Road G.O.P. Building Ill, Suite 400 Bossier City, LA 71111 Telephone: (318) 741-8205 Facsimile: (318) 741-0207 

Report on Compliance With Requirements Applicable to Each Major Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance in Accordance With OMB Circular No. A-133 Board Members Lincoln Parish School Board Ruston, Louisiana 

Ernest L. Allen, CPA (A Professionat Accounting Corp.) Tim Green, CPA Margie Williamson, CPA 

.Compliance We have audited the compliance of Lincoln Parish School Board, Ruston, Louisiana, with the types of compliance requirements described in the U. S. Office of Management and Budget tOMB) Circular No. A-133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 1999. The School Board's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the School Board's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the School Board's compliance based on our audit. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular No. A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular No. A- 133 require that we plan aad perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the School Board's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the School Board's compliance with those requirements. In our opinion, the School Board complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 1999. The results of our auditing procedures disclosed no instances of noncompliance with those requirements which are required to be reported in accordance with OMB Circular No. A-133. nternal Control Over Comnliance The management of the School Board is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal programs. In plmming and performing our audit, we considered the School Board's internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular No. A- 133. 
Member: American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Society of Louisiana Ccr0 fled PuNic Accountants and American Institute of Certified Public Accounlanls Division fur CPA Firms Equal Opportunity Employer 



Board Members Lincoln Parish School Board Ruston, Louisiana Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more ofthe internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants that would be material in relation to a major federal program being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over compliance and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses. Schedule of Exnenditures of Federal Awards We have audited the general-purpose financial statements of Lincoln Parish School Board, as of and for the year ended June 30, 1999, and have issued our report thereon dated October 14, 1999. Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general-purpose financial statements taken as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by OMB Circular No. A-133 and is not a required part of the general-purpose financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general-purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the general-purpose financial statements taken as a whole. This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board, management, federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Monroe, Louisiana October 14, 1999 
f ALLEN, GkEEN & COMPANY, LLP 



Lincoln Parish School Board Ruston, Louisiana Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 FEDERAL GRANTOR/ PASS-THROUGtt GRANTOR/PROGRAM NAME CFDA Number CASH FEDERAL AWARDS United States Department of Agriculture Passed Through Louisiana Department of Education School Breakfast Program National School Lunch Program Total United States Department of Agriculture United States Department of Education Direct Programs: Impact Aid (Title VIII) 

10.553 10.555 
84.041 Passed Through Louisiana Department of Education: Adult Education - State Grant Program 84.002A Title 1 Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84.010A Special Education: Grants to States (Part B) 

Preschool Grants Infants & Toddlers (Part H) Vocational Education 

84.027 
84.173 84.181A 

Basic Grants to States 84.048A Innovative Education Program Strategies - Title VI 84.298A Dwight D. Eisenhower Professional Development - Title II 84.281A Safe and Drug-Free Schools - State Grant - Title IV 84.186A Learn 2000 State and Local Education Systematic Improvement Grants (Goals 2000 State Grants) 84.276A Passed Through Franklin Parish School Board: Goals 2000 - Educate America Act 84.276 Total United States Department of Education 

Pass-Through Grantor No. Expenditures 
N/A N/A $ 298,380 1,063,585 1,361,965 
SO41Z-1999-2113 8,610 SO41Z-1993-2113 99-AE-3 I-F 99-AETT-3 I-F 99-IASA-31-1 2898-T13 I-C/O 1999 99-1B-31-S, 98-FT-31-C/OTO 1999 98-FT-31 99-1P-31-S,98-PF-31 98-1P-31-S-C/OTO 1999 97-CIT-31 98-IH-31-S-C/O TO 1999 99-VE-31-2B/BG 99-IASA~31-VI 99-IASA-31-II 99-IASA-3 I-IV 
99-TS-3 I-L 5276A50018-95 

28,669 1,335,179 
320,609 
44,200 3.693 
63,071 40.481 28,390 38.828 
963 74,839 1,987,532 (Continued) 



Lincoln Parish School Board Ruston, Louisiana Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 
FEDERAL GRANTOR/ PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR/PROGRAM NAME CFDA Number CASH FEDERAL AWARDS (Continued) United States Department of Defense Direct Programs: Department of The Army JROTC Federal Emergency Management Agency Passed Through Louisiana Department of Military Affairs FEMA - Disaster Public Assistance Total Cash Federal Awards 

Pass-Through Grantor No. Expenditures 

12.609 JROTCL-5498/99-08 $ 33,103 
83.UKN 1264-DR-LA 9,300 3,391,900 NONCASIt FEDERAL AWARDS United States Department of Agriculture Passed Through Louisiana Department of Agriculture and Forestry: Food Distribution (Commodities) 10.550 N/A 134,930 TOTAL FEDERAL AWARDS (Concluded) 



NOTEI-GENERAL 

Lincoln Parish School Board Ruston, Louisiana Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 
The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the activity of all federal awards programs &the Lincoln Parish School Board, (the School Board) Ruston, Louisiana. The School Board's reporting entity is defined in Note 1 of the Notes to the General-Purpose Financial Statements of the School Board's general-purpose financial statements. Federal awards received directly from federal agencies, as well as federal awards passed through other government agencies, are included on the schedule. 
NOTE 2 - BASIS OF ACCOUNTING The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal accounting, which is described in Note 1 of the Notes to Board's general-purpose financial statements. 

Awards is presented using the modified accrual basis of the General-Purpose Financial Statements of the School 
NOTE 3 - RELATIONSHIP TO GENERAL-PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Federal awards revenues are reported in the School Board's general-purpose financial statements as follows 
General fund 
Special revenue funds Title I Title VI Adult education Title I1 School food service Parish-wide Maintenance Special programs Title IV (Drag Free) 
NOTE 4 - RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL FINANCIAL REPORTS 

Federal Sources $ 41,714 
1,335,179 40,481 28,669 28,390 1,496,895 9,300 507,374 38,82_8 

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedule agree with the amounts reported in the related federal financia reports except for changes made to reflect amounts in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles 



Lincolu Parish School Board Ruston, Louisiana Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 NOTE 5 - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARDS For those funds that have matching revenues and state funding, federal expenditures were determined by deducting matching revenues from total expenditures. 
NOTE 6 - NONCASH PROGRAMS The commodities received, which are noncash revenues, are valued using prices provided by the United States Department of Agriculture. 



Lincoln Parish School Board Ruston, Louisiana Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 
PART I - Summary of the Auditors' Results Financial Statement Aud The type of audit report issued was unqualified. There were no reportable conditions required to be disclosed by Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 
There were no instances of noncompliance considered material, as defined by the Government Auditing Standards, to the financial statement. Audit of Federal Awards v. There were no reportable conditions required to be disclosed by OMB Circular A- 133 v. The type of report the auditor issued on compliance for major programs was unqualified. vi. The audit disclosed no audit findings which the auditor is required to report under OMB Circular No. A-133, Section .510(a). vii. The major federal programs are CFDA #84.010 Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies Child Nutrition Cluster CFDA #10.553 CFDA #10.555 School Breakfast Program National School Lunch Program viii. The dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs as described in OMB Circular No. A-133, Section .520(b) was $300,000. ix. The auditee does qualify as a low-risk auditee under OMB Circular No. A- 133, Section .530 



Lincoln Parish School Board Ruston, Louisiana 

Other Information 
The information in the following section concerns management's actions or intentions concerning prior- and current- year audit findings and is required by U. S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular No. A-133. This information has been prepared by the management of the Lincoln Parish School Board. Management accepts full responsibility, as required by OMB Circular No. A- 133, for the accuracy of the informatioi1. This information has not been audited by the auditors except as required by OMB Circular No. A-133 Section 500(e), and accordingly, no opinion is expressed. Section 500(e) requires the auditor to follow-up on prior audit findings, perform procedures to assess the reasonableness of the summary schedule of prior audit findings prepared by the auditee, and report, as a current-year audit finding when the auditor concludes that the Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings materially misrepresents the status of any prior audit finding. 



Lincoln Parish School Board Ruston, Louisiana Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings June 30, 1999 
There were no audit findings for the year ended June 30, 1998 



Lincoln Parish School Board Ruston, Louisiana 

Management Letter Items 



 

The CPA, Never Undet~t~ns~ T~ Val~- 

ALLEN, GREEN & COMPANY, LLP CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS P. O. Box 6075 Monroe, LA 71211-6075 2414 Ferrand Street 2285 Benton Road Monroe, LA 71201 G.O.P, Building III, Suite 400 Telephone: (316) 388-4422 Bossier City, LA 71111 Facsimile: (316) 3884664 Telephone: (318) 741-0205 Web site: www,allengreencpa,com Facsimile: (316) 741-0207 

Board Members Lincoln Parish School Board Ruston, Louisiana 
Management Letter 

Ernest L. Allen, CPA A Professional Accoun ng Corp.) Tim Green, CPA Margie Williamson, CPA 

In planning and perfomaing our audit of the general-purpose financial statements of the Lincoln Parish School Board, Ruston, Louisiana, for the year ended June 30, 1999, we considered the School Board's internal control to plan our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements and not to provide assurance on internal control. However, during our audit, we noted certain matters involving internal control and other operational matters that are presented for your consideration. This letter does not affect our report dated October 14, 1999, on the financial statements of the School Board. We will review the status of these comments during our next audit engagement. Our comments and recommendations, all of which have been discussed with appropriate members of management, are intended to improve internal control or result in other operating efficiencies. We will be pleased to discuss these comments in further detail at your convenience, to perform any additional study of these matters, or to assist you in implementing the recommendations. Our comments are summarized as follows: 99-M1 Condition: A physical inventory was performed at all schools and at the central office. These inventories were submitted to the central office and the additions and deletions for ten oftbe fifteen sites have been entered on the fixed asset system. Recommendation: We recommend the School Board continue the effort of entering changes for all other schools to the fixed assets system. Management's response: We recognize the task of correcting aud maintaining fixed asset records for the entire District is an enormous and very time consuming project to undertake, but most necessary. Over the past two years we have managed to "clean up" and continually maintain the records for 10 of our 15 sites. With continuing our diligent efforts to reconcile the fixed assets at our remaining sites, our goal is to have all fixed asset records in order by the end of this next fiscal year and to continue to follow procedures to maintain future changes in fixed assets. 99-M2 Collateralization for Deoosits Condition: According to LSA-R.S. 39:1218 any bank selected as the fiscal agency of any depositing authority, or any bank with whom a private contract is entered into, whether the bank is within or without the state, shall give securities for the safekeeping and payment of the deposits. One student activity fund account at a local bank was undereollateralized by $40,047 at June 30, 1999. This was the only account at this bank. 
Member: American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Society of Louisiana Celti fled Public Accountants and American Instimle of Certified Public Accountants Division for CPA Firms Equal Opportunity Employer 



Board Members Lincoln Parish School Board Ruston, Louisiana 
Recommendation: The School Board should monitor bank balances and securities pledgcd on a periodic basis Management's response: This depositor bank has on deposit the funds for only one student activity account in the District. After discussing the undercollateralized deposits with the depositor bank, it was discovered the account was not properly flagged as "public funds" in order for pledging requirements to be monitored. This has since been corrected. Management will verify that all student activity accounts are properly marked as "public funds" at all depositor banks for eollateralization purposes, in addition to monitoring bank balances on a frequent basis to insure proper securities are pledged by depositor banks. 99-M3 Student Activity Funds Comment: Agreed-upon procedures were performed at each of the fourteen schools by another auditing firm. In addition to this, procedures were performed at two of the schools as part of our audit. The following conditions were noted: One school appears not to maintain complete documentation such as receipt books or collection logs for the original source items that make up individual deposits. According to LSA-R.S. 17:414.3, all requests for withdrawal of funds should be supported by two signatures, one of which should be the principal and the other an authorized personnel, such as a faculty advisor, coach, or school secretary. Two of the fourteen schools appeared to have exceptions to this law. Most of the expenditures tested at the two schools appeared to have only one authorization. Schools should maintain original documentation supporting disbursements. Two schools had disbursements which did not appear to be supported by the original documentation. Funds collected by the schools should be deposited on a timely basis, usually within three business days, and intact. Two schools were not making timely deposits, one of which was not making deposits intact. Recommendation: The School Board should ensure all school administrators have a copy of the Student Activity Fund Policy manual and that they are familiar with its contents. Management's response: Management will review with all school administrators the findings noted above and will ensure that all school administrators are made aware of the policies noted in the Student Activity Fund Policy manual. 99-M4 Bonded Employees Comment: Bond coverages for employees currently cover the Superintendent and the Board President for $60,000 each and key employees for one school are covered for $200,000 each. All other employees are covered in a blanket bond for $50,000 each. This coverage has recently been increased but is still low considering the related risk involved. Other School Boards have found it beneficial to have coverage for key employees up to $200,000. 
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Board Members Lincoln Parish School Board Ruston. Louisiana 
Recommendation: The School Board should research the benefits of increasing their bond coverage of key employees. Management's response: In addition to the increase made this past year in the amount of bond coverage on all employees, management will look into increasing bond coverage to $200,000 for all key employees who have access to receiving monies and issuing payments at all district locations. 
99-M5 mnact of GASB Statement No. 34 Comment: The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), which determines the standards of financial reporting for governmental entities, recently released Statement No. 34 - Basic Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis -for State and Local Governments. GASB's new reporting model will be mandatory for the School Board for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2003. They allow earlier implementation. This new reporting model will dramatically change several aspects of the financial reporting for the School Board. Three major changes are a part of this new model. First, the new reporting model will include the current set of financial statements with modifications and will add a new set of financial statements. The new set will be on the economic resources measurement focus and the full accrual basis of accounting, the same as exist today in the commercial environment. Allen, Green & Company believes, at this early stage, that the prudent approach is for the School Board to continue its current budget or modified accrual methodology for its books. Side adjustments will be made at year-end to convert the financial statements to the full accrual accounting method. The single change that will probably pose the most challenge to the School Board may be accounting for general capital assets. Under the new reporting model, general capital assets will be accounted for in virtually the same manner as commercial entities. Assets will be capitalized, depreciated, and shown consolidated on the new Statement of Net Assets with the funds, rather than displayed separately in the fixed assets account group. The changes required by GASB Statement No. 34 will obviously require the School Board to place a greater emphasis on accounting for fixed assets than is required by the current model. Another addition to the annual financial report will be the Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This document, which will be several pages in length, will be a narrative explanation of the major financial events/changes during the fiscal year, what caused the events/changes, and project what the events/changes' effects will be on future years. It will also give the reader insight on management's decisions underlining the budget.. 
Recommendation: Several important issues need to be addressed before setting up the new reporting mode Since the fixed assets will require depreciation, the listing will need to be current and comprehensive. We encourage the current listing be evaluated to decide if efforts are necessary to bring it up to date, both in content and accuracy. An evaluation of the fixed asset software will be necessary to decide if the system call provide a comprehensive listing in a usable format for depreciating assets. The software system should have fields for usefid lives, salvage value, depreciation methods and fund assignments. The system should be capable of calculating depreciation and printing reports for assets' depreciation and accumulated depreciation by asset, by fund for each year. The system must also be able to roll-forward information each year. 



Board Members Lincoln Parish School Board Ruston, Louisiana 
The School Board should start now to implement the changes. A longer implementation period will allow more time for testing and remediation of the new depreciation system and the other elements of the new model. An early start will spread the cost over a longer period, thereby smoothing the impact to cash flow. Hopefully, the longer implementation period will partially reduce the anxiety. The School Board should evaluate the need for possible changes to the current basis of accounting and should be cognizant that the new reporting model will provide the reader with more information than is currently being provided. Management's response: Management is fully aware of the changes coming in financial reporting as a result of GASB Statement No. 34. Management will look into and keep abreast of any changes needed in daily routine operations and accounting practices needed as a result of the change to full accrual accounting. We recognize the biggest change will come in the area of reporting depreciation of fixed assets. In order to prepare for the changes in reporting of asset depreciation, we must first attain a current, reliable listing of fixed assets. As noted in management comment 99-M 1, we are in the process of reconciling this listing. Also, we are aware that changes are needed and are making plans for changes in our fixed asset records maintenance program to accommodate the calculation of depreciation and all necessary reports. We will continue to gather more information and seek guidance from our independent auditor, as well as State governing bodies, on the financial reporting changes that will be necessary as a result of GASB Statement No. 34. 
Also included immediately following this letter is a Status of Prior Management Letter Items. This information has not been audited by Allen, Green & Company, LLP, and no opinion is expressed. However, we did follow-up on prior management letter items and performed procedures to assess the reasonableness of the Status of Prior Management Letter Items prepared by the auditee, and we would report, as a current-year management letter item when Allen, Green & Company, LLP, concludes that the Status of Prior Management Letter Items materially misrepresents the status of any prior management letter item. This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board, management, federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Monroe, Louisiana October 14, 1999 
ALLEN. GREEN & COMPANY. LLP 
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Manaflement I Initially occurred 

Lincoln Parish School Board Ruston, Louisiana Status of Prior Management Letter Items June 30, 1999 98-M1 Record Keenin~ for Fixed Assets 
Condition: A physical inventory was performed at all schools and at the central office. These inventories were submitted to the central office and the additions and deletions for five of the fourteen schools have been entered on the fixed asset system. Corrective action taken 
Manaecment letter item #2 Initially occurred 

See current-year Management Letter Item 99-M 
98-M2 Conateralization for DeDosi 

Condition: According to LSA-R.S. 39:1218 any bank selected as the fiscal agency of any depositing authority, or any bank with whom a private contract is entered into, whether the bank is within or without the state, shall give securities for the safekeeping and payment of the deposits. The deposits at a local bank were undercollateralized by $331,909 at June 30, 1998. Corrective action taken See current-year Management Letter Item 99-M2 


